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Group Structure
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Financial Highlights
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Major Financial Indicators and Ratios
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For the year ended 31st March
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Operating results REXEE
Revenue Wz

Gross profit EH
Operating profit R

Net profit ]

Per share data sRER
Earnings per share BRAEF
Total dividend per share BRLAR S
Net assets per share BREESE
Financial position B AR
Total assets BEMAE

Net assets BEFE
Financial ratio Bt =
Current ratio (Times) MENLL ()
Quick ratio (Times) RE)LL ()
Gross margin (%) FE (%)
Net gearing ratio (%) SFEEBELE%)
Turnover ratio BELE®
Inventory turnover FEBE
Debtors turnover FEUER R 85
Creditors turnover FE{TERIR S

2022
—EBEC__F
HK$'000
FET

501,269
131,768
30,078
21,140

HK cents
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HK$'000
FTERT

355,925
188,169

% changes

2021 increase (decrease)
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FET
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HK cents %
(Il
6.1 8.2
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T
334,479 6.4
172,875 8.8
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Financial Highlights
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For the financial year ended 31st March 2022 (the “Reporting Period”), the
Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$501 million, representing
an increase of approximately 9.9% from approximately HK$456 million
recorded in the last year. Gross profit increased by approximately 20.0%
from approximately HK$110 million in the last year to approximately
HK$132 million for the Reporting Period, while the gross profit margin
increased by approximately 2.2% from 24.1% to 26.3%. The Group
recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$30 million for the
Reporting Period (for the year ended 31st March 2021: approximately
HK$23 million). The profit attributable to shareholders was approximately
HK$13.2 million for the Reporting Period (for the year ended 31st March
2021: profit of approximately HK$12.2 million). This represented an
increase in the earnings per share of approximately HK$0.066 for the
Reporting Period (earning per share of approximately HK$0.061 for the
year ended 31st March 2021). The Board has resolved that subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, a final dividend of HK0.5 cents per ordinary share shall
be declared for the Reporting Period, in the sum of HK$1 million to the
shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on 25th August 2022. The final dividend, if approved, is expected
to be paid on 5th September 2022.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to focus on its three
core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment under the brand of
(the “Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the computer
business (the “Computer Business”) which includes (i) the retail sales of
computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand of
VideoCom (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of
computer products and consumer products under the brand of ﬂﬂ@ (the
“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the cosmetic and online retail
business mainly under the brand of Wishh! and @ (the “Cosmetic and
Online Retail Business”). During the Reporting Period, the Group's
turnover derived from the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business
increased by approximately 22.8% from approximately HK$294 million in
the last year to approximately HK$361 million. Turnover from the
Computer Business decreased by approximately 19.6% from
approximately HK$97 million in the last year to approximately HK$78.
Turnover from Cosmetic and Online Retail Business decreased by
approximately 4.5% from approximately HK$66 million in the last year to
approximately HK$63 million.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total operating expenses
increased by approximately 6.7% to approximately HK$105 million (for
the year ended 31st March 2021: approximately HK$98 million), among
which the distribution and selling expenses were approximately HK$35
million which have increased by approximately 2.9% from approximately
HK$34 million recorded in the last year. During the Reporting Period, the
general and administrative expenses increased by approximately 7.8%
to approximately HK$69 million (for the year ended 31st March 2021:
approximately HK$64 million). As at 31st March 2022, the headcount for
the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business increased from 312 full-time
employees last year by approximately 6.1% to 331 full-time employees
this year while the headcount for the Computer Business decreased from
51 full-time employees last year by approximately 7.8% to 47 full-time
employees for the Reporting Period; and the headcount for Cosmetic
and Online Retail Business decreased from 18 full-time employees last
year by approximately 11.1% to 16 full-time employees. Meanwhile,
finance cost for the Reporting Period decreased by approximately 3.7%
to approximately HK$2.6 million (for the year ended 31st March 2021:
approximately HK$2.7 million).
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Looking forward to the fiscal year 2022, the regional war will be an
unfavorable factor pressuring on the consumer electronics market,
especially in Europe. Any deterioration of the situation may have negative
impact on our business. On the other hand, in the US market, there are no
obvious signs of slowdown in demand by American consumers despite high
inflation rate. On the supply side, material shortage, logistic delay and the
lockdown of certain China cities are impacting every facet of the electronic
components supply chain. It is expected that the shortage will persist
throughout 2022.

In South Africa, Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited (“Swan") and Switch
Technique KZN Proprietary Limited (“Switch”), our subsidiaries engaging in
electrical components trading business are expected to grow continuously.
Considering the potential growth of renewable energy market, Swan and
Switch has established the individual solar energy systems business and
will further develop it in the coming year. Overall, the Group is optimistic
about the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business.

Regarding the Computer Business, the Group expects that the demand for
computer and mobile accessories will remain stable, but the profit margin
of flash memory will be under pressure due to fierce competition. We
will continue to explore distinctive products and introduce new brands
to maintain the market share of the computer distribution business in
the local market. With the successful experience in developing our own
brand MEC, the Group endeavors to market another fashionable consumer
electronics brand JT.
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The Group anticipates that the cosmetic retail business will continue to
be under pressure. The economic outlook of Hong Kong remains uncertain
since the COVID-19 pandemic (the “COVID-19 Pandemic”) is still not fully
under control. The social-distancing restrictive measures and the ‘mask
order” are not expected to be lifted in Hong Kong shortly. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to monitor the situation and tailor its strategies
flexibly to achieve a turnaround. Meanwhile, the Group is optimistic about
its online business. In the first quarter of 2022/23, we appointed a sourcing
agent in Japan to improve our sourcing network and streamline the
procurement process. The Group will be able to introduce greater variety of
Japanese products to consumers with shorter procurement cycle.

| would like to thank our management team and all our staff members for
their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the Reporting
Period. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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During the Reporting Period, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
electrical components and equipments under the brand of (the
“Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business
which includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone
accessories under the brand of

sssss

Business”). The EIectronrc and Electncal Trading Business, the Computer
Business and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business accounted for
approximately 72% and 15% and 13% of the Group’s total turnover
respectively for the Reporting Period.

By analysis on the three core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business, the Computer Business
and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business were approximately 27.1%,
23.3% and 25.1% respectively for the Reporting Period (for the year ended
31st March 2021: approximately 24.6%, 21.5% and 25.7%).

The Electronic and Electrical Trading Business is the primary contributor
to the Group’s revenue during the Reporting Period and recorded revenue
of approximately HK$361 million as compared with that of approximately
HK$294 million recorded in the last year, representing an increase of
approximately 22.8%. During the Reporting Period, there was a global
shortage in electronic components, mainly caused by lockdown of
manufacturing plants and supply shortage. To maintain enough storage
for production, manufacturers were willing to pay increased price for
components or looking for alternatives for scarce components. Therefore,
considerable amount of out-of-date code microcontroller units ("MCU")
were sold at a decent price during the Reporting Period.
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The aggregate turnover of all of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries was
approximately HK$175 million for the Reporting Period, representing
an overall increase of approximately 28.7% as compared to that of
approximately HK$136 million recorded in the last year.

The Group's subsidiaries in South Africa recorded turnover of
approximately HK$143 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of about 31.2% from approximately HK$109 million last year.
For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Government of South Africa
implemented a stringent lockdown in response to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 Pandemic (the “COVID-19 Pandemic”). The operation of Mantech
Electronics (Proprietary) Limited (“Mantech”), a subsidiary engaging in
electronic components trading business in South Africa, was suspended
for almost two months. During the Reporting Period, though the COVID-19
Pandemic was still uncertain, business activities resumed to normal as
the restrictions imposed by the government were relaxed. Moreover, the
global shortage of components also contributed to the growth in the South
African business. With wide variety of products and relatively higher
inventory level, Mantech managed to meet the high demand of local
customers.

In terms of geographical segments, the turnover from Hong Kong, the
Asia Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and
other regions accounted for approximately 44%, 24%, 29%, 2% and 1%,
respectively of the Group's total turnover during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Computer Retail Business recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$20 million (for the year ended 31st
March 2021: approximately HK$25 million), representing a decrease
of about 20%. During the Reporting Period, the turnover of the
Computer Distribution Business recorded a decrease of about 19.4%
to approximately HK$58 million (for the year ended 31st March 2021:
approximately HK$72 million). For the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Computer Business benefited from the distance-learning and work-
from-home arrangements, which increased the demand for computer
accessories unexpectedly. As students returned to school and work-from-
home arrangement had come to end, the demand for computer accessories
resumed to ordinary level.
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During the Reporting Period, the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$63 million (for the year ended
31st March 2021: approximately HK$66 million), representing a decrease
of about 4.5%. During the Reporting Period, it was still challenging and
difficult for the retail store business in face of the Omicron outbreak. The
imposition of “mask order” led to a low demand for makeup and cosmetic
products. The gathering and social distancing restrictive measures
weakened the consumer sentiment and led to low retail foot traffic. In
December 2021, we closed one retail store located in Mong Kok. During
the final quarter of the Reporting Period, the Group managed to source
rapid antigen test kit and other protective products with its strong sourcing
network to fulfil the sudden surge in market demand, when the fifth wave
of the COVID-19 Pandemic outbreak was at the peak.

As at 31st March 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$37 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$138 million. As at 31st March 2022, the current ratio
remained at approximately 1.9 (as at 31st March 2021: approximately
1.9). Out of the Group’s cash and bank balances, about 34% and 11%
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"), respectively. The balance of approximately 17%, 14%, 8%, 3%,
12% and 1% of its total cash and bank balances was denominated in
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), South African Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, New
Taiwan dollars, Singapore dollars and Euro, respectively. The Group’s
total assets amounted to approximately HK$356 million as at 31st March
2022 (as at 31st March 2021: approximately HK$334 million). Net assets
per share amounted to approximately HK$0.94 (as at 31st March 2021:
approximately HK$0.86). Dividend and basic earnings per share were
approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.066, respectively (as at 31st March
2021: approximately HK$0.01 and basic earnings per share HK$0.061,
respectively)
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The Group generally finances its operation by internal resources and
banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at 31st March 2022,
the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans and trade finance
from banks totaling approximately HK$89 million (as at 31st March 2021:
approximately HK$104 million), with an unused balance of approximately
HK$20 million (as at 31st March 2021: approximately HK$34 million).
The Directors believe that the Group's existing financial resources
are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working capital
requirements.

As at 31st March 2022, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$69 million (as at 31st March 2021: HK$70 million),
which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including short-term
loans, bank overdraft, and trade finance) for financing the daily business
operations and future development plans. The majority of the Group's
bank borrowings as at 31st March 2022 were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. These short-term loans and trade finance were secured by
the Company’s corporate guarantees of around HK$76 million and the
leasehold properties in Singapore and Portugal (as at 31st March 2021:
HK$96 million). During the Reporting Period, the Group's borrowings bore
interest at rates ranging from 2.2% to 7% per annum (for the year ended
31st March 2021: ranging from 2.1% to 9% per annum).

As at 31st March 2022, the Group's gross borrowings repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$99 million (as at 31st March 2021:
approximately HK$95 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$37 million, the Group's net borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$62 million (as at 31st March 2021: approximately
HK$61 million). The total equity as at 31st March 2022 was approximately
HK$188 million (as at 31st March 2021: approximately HK$173 million).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to
total equity, decreased to 33% (as at 31st March 2021: 35.3%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O T vk i e 23 e

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
Most of the Group's transactions were denominated in HKD, RMB and
USD. Given that the exchange rate of HKD against RMB has been and is
likely to be under control and that the Hong Kong Government’s policy
of pegging HKD to USD remains in effect, the Directors consider that
the risk faced by the Group on foreign exchange will remain minimal and
no hedging or other alternative measures have been undertaken by the
Group. As at 31st March 2022, the Group had no significant risk exposure
pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest rates, currency swaps, or
other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2022, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$14 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiaries in Singapore and Portugal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2022.

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2022, the Group had a total of 394 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
significant investment, material acquisition and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies during the Reporting Period.
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Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 61, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(the "Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 41 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

Dr. Hung is also a General Committee Member and the Group 20 Chairman
(Non-manufacturing Il: Trading (Hong Kong Trade Services Council)) of the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries, the Independent Manager of Chan Sui
Ki (La Salle) Primary School, the School Manager of De La Salle Secondary
School New Territories.

Dr. Hung is the husband of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the deputy chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. He is also the elder brother of
Hung Ying Fung, an executive director of the Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Dr. Hung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Dr. Hung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO”) as
at 31 March 2022. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Hung does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 60, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ”) of the Company.
With more than 41 years of experience in the electronics industry,
Ms. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and
internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014-2015) and Advisory Committee (2010—-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman of the Company, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and
the sister of an executive director of the Company, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Ms. Yeung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Ms. Yeung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2022. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Yeung does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 58, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 36 years of
experience in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the
director of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited.
Mr. Hung was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce and Industrial Liaison Committee (2021-2023). He is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.
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Save for currently being an executive Director, Mr. Hung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Mr. Hung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2022. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Hung does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders
of the Company.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 59, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in the PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He
has over 38 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry.
He is the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Mr. Yeung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. Save
as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in
this annual report, Mr. Yeung was not interested in any Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2022. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Yeung does not have any relationship with any other Directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 73, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) and a senior industry
consultant for a number of overseas-based trade fair organizers. He was
the executive director of the HKEIA and managing director of the HKEIA's
subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd.
from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr.
Chapman worked for 12 years as economics editor at the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and for 8 years as business editor in a local English-
language newspaper.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chapman did not hold any directorship in
the last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on
any securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 58, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Leung is
a qualified accountant, chartered secretary and Chartered Governance
Professional with over 35 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and financial management. He holds the Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Forensic Accounting and Auditing, the Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Management, the Doctor of Education degree in Educational Management,
a Doctor of Business Administration degree, a Master of Professional
Accounting degree, a Master of Law in International and Commercial
Law, a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration, a Bachelor
of Commerce degree majoring in Accounting, and a Diploma in Forensic
Accounting. He is an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, Chartered Governance
Institute and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member
of the Assaciation of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. Dr. Leung is also an
adjunct lecturer of the Hong Kong University (SPACE). He is currently an
independent non-executive director of AV Promotions Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8419), and chief financial officer of HM International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8416) He was an executive director in 2021 of
Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code 2293).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Leung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 66, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He obtained
an Honorary Bachelor’'s Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma in
Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985
respectively. He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981 and
was appointed Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired in
August 2016 at the age of 60. Mr. Ku has been the Vice-chairman of the
Tai Po & North District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong
Schools Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the
Federation’s Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He has also
been the Vice-chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’
Association and is currently a member of the Hong Kong Lasallian
Education Council.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ku did not hold any directorship in the last
three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 64, Senior Management

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st
March 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the
Company, he is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited),
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited ("Mantech Electronics”),
Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.
Mr. Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the Portuguese diaspora
by Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho is responsible for the business operations of the Group in
South Africa and Portugal. He joined the Group in December 2001 when
Mantech Electronics was acquired by the Group and became an executive
director of the Company in June 2013. Mr. Moutinho obtained his national
certificate in Electronics from the University of Johannesburg (formerly
known as Technikon Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated at the
Johannesburg Technical College in South Africa in 1977. He is a qualified
electrical technician engineer.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Moutinho did not hold any directorship in
the last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on
any securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 59, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 33 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

B EXPriEEN  hEEBRE=FHLERE
ERETAELLGIESFME LT Z ETAR
EEHEMERRL  BEAMEMARRERE &
RERRE - T ERRSIIERAR Z 8 I &
o MERARBE S REIEGRPIEXVEREE 2
Pty 7 R (R dE s e

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho -

645% * AAREEA S
RZE—=FRNAE-ZE—XRF=ZA=+—
HEERARRIMITES - @iEHFHETAR
Bl ZHITEEZHS  Moutinho 5 £ B AR
AR M B AR Z2ESE + 8% Langa Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited - MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited ( B #8 AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited )
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited ( [ Mantech
Electronics | )  Mobicon International Limited &
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited ° Moutinho%c 4 &
—ZT— P4 — A i#EEPortuguese World Council & £
REETERER -

Moutinho e 4 B E AR B v FIEME & 7T 1) %
HEE - FR T —F+ZAMALERE(E
F Mantech ElectronicsZE AR S B U ) » WHN = F
—=—FRNAKARARRITES ° MoutinhoZt 4
R—NN\ZF B K8 A T2 K2 (5178 Technikon
Witwatersrand) S I REFEXEEFE - TR
— L+ £ & 2 % 5§ 3k Johannesburg Technical
College ° WABBRBNFEMIRAL -

EXCATIEEEE SN - Moutinhot A8 A = F I
REFHEEMEEIEIEET S Lz L
MAREEEMEERA - BEMEMAQRE

- BREEE - ETERESIERAT 2 I
EEE - MEREREE S MBS IEF]SEXVED
W2 R HEA i o

G

EME

595% + BAREEAS

AEREEZ SRERKEE - EXER—NNN\E
NAMAZREE  RNEERZEHEFHBRER
PBFLH - HEAELREE 2 B2F KRBT -
ELTABBRREEZET -



Save as disclosed above, Ms. Wan did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
she is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does she have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

Tsoi Ho Yin,

aged 37, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for the financial management of the Group.
Mr. Tsoi is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in September 2016. He has
more than 13 years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsoi did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 32, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of wishh!,
and merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from The University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Hung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
she is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does she have any
interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.
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Hung Lok Tin,

aged 31, Senior Management

is the business development manager of A Plus 2 Computer Limited and
Apower Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung joined the Group in January 2013
and is responsible for overseeing the product development, merchandising
and brand management of L=1VideoCom and “APower logo”. Mr. Hung holds
a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree from the Australian National
University and he is the executive member of the HKEIA. He is the son of
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the nephew of
Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the nephew of Mr. Yeung Kwaok Leung, Allix.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
he is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any interests in
the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 55, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He
graduated from Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and
has over 30 years of experience in distribution of electronic components
and test and measurement instruments. He is currently responsible for the
overall operation of these two companies covering Southeast Asia.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chooi did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with
any Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) during the Reporting Period except for the following deviations:

Code Provision B.2.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. The independent non-executive directors of the
Company (the “INEDs") are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company under Bye-law 111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the Reporting
Period.

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung
Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Hung
Ying Fung, and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely,
Mr. Charles E. Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong,
Eric. One of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise, which is required
by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure. She is also the sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr.
Hung Ying Fung is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.
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Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 16
to 22 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.

The CEQ is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's
operations.

The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting at the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
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Four regular Board meetings of the Reporting Period were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the discussions of two
continued connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance
with Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group's performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session
to the directors on the implications of late disclosure of inside information
from recent cases. In addition, the directors had attended external courses,
conferences and luncheons organized by various organizations to further
enhance their capacities to carry out directors’ duties.

The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.
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According to the records maintained by the Company Secretary, all
Directors pursued continuous professional development during the
Reporting Period and relevant details are set out below:

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure | EE L

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl SR+

Mr. Hung Ying Fung LA

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BRI E
Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman
Leung Wai Cheung REH

Ku Wing Hong Eric Tk R

A: attending seminars/conferences/forums

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,

general business, corporate governance and directors” duties and
responsibilities

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision B.2.2 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to Bye-law 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members may,
at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office provided that
the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing a
director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and be served
on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such
meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his/
her removal.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at 31 March 2022, the Board consisted of six male Directors and one
female Director. Among all employees of the Group, male employees
accounted for 54% and female employees accounted for 46%. The Group
believes that the gender ratio of employees is within the reasonable range.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.
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The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on 20th
February 2006 to assist the Board to oversee the remuneration packages
of and determine the remuneration structure of the executive directors and
senior management of the Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai
Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference
including the duties of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2020/2021, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of
the Group is HK$8 million or above but is less than HK$10 million; and (ii)
10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$10
million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee also approved
to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to determine
the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all executive
directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less than 10% of
the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Remuneration Committee were tabled to the
Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate. On
23rd February 2022, the Remuneration Committee resolved that a new
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2022/2023 will be adopted which provides that the aggregate
amount of management bonuses payable to all executive directors in
respect of any financial year of the Company shall not exceed (i) 5%
of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$10
million or above but is less than HK$15 million; and (ii) 10% of the net
profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$15 million or
above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee also approved that,
with effect from the fiscal year 2022/2023, it shall delegate the autharity
to the Chairman of the Group to determine the distribution level on the
management bonus payout to all executive directors and each executive
director shall entitle to not less than 10% of the aggregate amount of the
management bonuses.
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The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” section for the year:

HKS
BT

500,001 - 1,000,000
1-500,000

BN

Total number of persons

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of
the Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure,
Mr. Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including
the responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Nomination Committee
was amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Nomination Committee adopted a policy for the nomination of the
directors (the “Nomination Policy”). According to the Nomination Policy,
the Nomination Committee will use the following non-exhaustive factors,
including reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest, the
Company's board diversity policy and the independence of the candidate
(in the case of independent non-executive Directors) as reference in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination
Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for consideration
by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members. The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility and final
decision on all matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.

TRIHEI EE RS REREEN | —f2H
TEENEREEENAFEZMEAR :

Number of persons

AB

AARREZEZEGN _E——FE=A-+/\BK
o BEBEARBERZZEERERF - REEE
SIRAK B BIEARZE L + Charles E. Chapman
EERPEEBL  HELAIRZZESER -
HIRELZECRECBESHETHNAQEH
Ut K2 B X P AR o

FIIRBZEGRB  REREEN —F—/\F
T AT N\BERER] - REFTRAZHNA
XA B B FT A Ut o

RAZERCHEMEBRALEZTZHER(RARK
R - REEABER > £FHREANERZEE
MK REZEGEUTIER(RBHODAE
MIEMBRR)ELE - BREAEHE - KR
B RARE(BRAN B ZERREEBER
BT ARRIZEFTEMBZ TR - N
FAREAN 2B (B IERTEEMS) - 42
FZEQRAARRAZESES  UHFESS
REREZENRAAE(WE)AMREEESE
B REZEENRENIFAEFTENERESR
ZNE - REESHBREAETARRAS L
SE-EME  EESYHMAHBEEERERR
B UBUEAZKRTERE -

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR



During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to the
Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Reporting period. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.

During the meetings held in the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2021 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2021;

(i1) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;
(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the

Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules
and other statutory compliance;
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(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems of the Group;

(v) reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and management's
response; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2021/2022
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Company may declare dividend
according to the recommendation of the Board. The Company may in its full
discretion decide not to declare dividend due to various reasons, including
but not limited to maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and
reserving more capital to capture opportunities, etc. In deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(ii) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(vii)  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry’s
norm;
(viii)  the general market conditions; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

() REAEENHELRERERRGEL
A

(v) B OMNIE A BN BUE IR B B ok 1 R E IR
BHEE : &

(vi) BT =— /2T FE2%EE
B R ZEAE  WHEEESHE -

RRBERATBREBR - ERFEBAHREEN - K
REZ REAARAEERER  ERERGZ
ERARHT  ARBAKREFTEZERT KK
B ARBA2ENBEREENTRANRE (R
BRETRRESARHEELAEBLREESZES
NEIEEREE) TEIRRE - ERERTESR
ENREREMEEERESER  EXQAERE
(B Ea%) TIIEE

(i) REEZBRUBAR

(i) REBZERRAKREERRBE M
5

(iii) AEBCZEPEBEESTRKEARARERE
K

liv)  AEEZAEERLEEREBKE

(v) REBERAR LRI A B MR
B EfRIBR ] :

Vi)  ARBRAKEZKBERRZEFEA
KAy Ik

i) BERRIREEZHERITEED

(vii)  EEMIBER 0 &

(ix) EEFERREANEMEMESE -

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR



The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meeting during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below.

RBEFE  REFHFEFTER  BFXZER
eE ¥VMEZEEEH REZEggaLK

RBFAREZHHN TR °

Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2021/2022

R-B=-/ZB--F§
HE/ ETEERR

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual

Committee Committee Committee General

Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting

Name of Director BEEnE EZE8E BREZEEEE FWZESEgZ RERZEgS RRAFEAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HelEEL 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATEA i 1N
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BBt 6/6 N/ATEF /1 N/ATER 71
Mr. Hung Ying Fung MEELE 6/6 N/ATEA N/ATRE A N/ATNE 1
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE 6/6 N/ATEAR N/ATiEH N/ATER I
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZt & 6/6 4/4 N/ATEA 1 11
Or. Leung Wai Cheung REHET 6/6 4/4 171 11 il
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKEAE 6/6 474 1/1 N/ATNE A 1

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2022, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 67 to 73
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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For the year ended 31st March 2022, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as
follows:

FriR AR

Services rendered

ZH AR

Audit services
Non-audit services — Interim review

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to identify, analyze, evaluate and mitigate risk
exposures that may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of
our operation or prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated
by our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter
alia, enhance the Company's governance and corporate management
processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses. The risk management process of the Group
will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual risk identification exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks (including
documenting those of potentially high impact) and the development
and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; (ii)
testing of documented risk management procedures at approval intervals;
and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal
control systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are
implemented through our operational process and the results of the same
has been reported to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to
examine key issues in relation to the financial and operational matters/
practices and to provide its findings and any recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.
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With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period, and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board; (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company’s
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c) by
fax at (852) 2397 0339.

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the Reporting
Period, the Company Secretary has confirmed that he has complied with all
the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

FhiEh BERBEHAREEMS ARECE
ERRF  BRELERERBEERRERER -

RBEFE  HERZES  ARTERANE
ZEFINRT B0 R DA HRZ Rk
ERNAREERS  BRENE  2ENARE
TEZERE YRAREREGBERNER - F
JE A = TR 25 B 75 B 3R K P AP 2R A B AR LA B AR S
MWETER  KERIEHEER -

ARARETAREEBRR LKL EERE © (I
RBFAGRBEREHERERALBEEEN
BH 258 (IAEE & RADEE R A E
EFIE 2 AR RARR B E &
B Rli)mBER RIREERTSBRERE - )
W QEFERRRENER I REBNE
FoBEAFERIAFH R TEHEFRLTE
(b) B EE(852) 2397 6628 Bk(cH{EHE %(852) 2397 0339 °

REAWERARAZERER @ BEEEARAZ
AREER ARAWERERNIFEER QFAMWE
THMEFSRHEAHELREECER » BRE
BEFSRERF  ERERE AR RMAO - AR
ECWER  RMEFEAN  BAA LWARANPE
B RIBIZ FIBERE °

ERFATNLRARB 02 —#EBRAE
(BIE BN A 2 B SR s L A B H)
R ZBRRIELE@MERE  EEEA
SZENGRUE B FRBRFRIRE o

HMEFEGIW ARG 2RI LA MET
—t-HRARBRRBAIAE - AlIEH
ZERZANTHREETRHEBFER
BRERZERMALABTTERABRRERH
RE HEAHFEZTIRNERRE
H B = B B IR T -



Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the meeting provided that the shareholders
concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the Company's
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.
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During the Reporting Period (defined hereinunder), Mobicon Group
Limited (the “Company”, and its subsidiaries from time to time (our
“Group” or “we")) operated three core business operations, namely: (1)
the distribution of electronic components, electrical components and
equipment under the brand of MOBICON (the “Electronic and Electrical
Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail
sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand
of VideoCom (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of
computer products and consumer products under the brand of APower (the
“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail
Business under the brand of Wishh! and APower. Our Group's head office
is in Hong Kong and has subsidiaries in South Africa, Mainland China,
Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and Portugal.

This report (“Report”) is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” issued by the Stock Exchange
(Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. Since our Group's head office and
main business are in Hong Kong, based on materiality principle, unless
otherwise specified, this report focuses principally on our measures and
performance of the environmental and social aspects of our trading,
distribution and retail businesses in Hong Kong.

This Report covers the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the
“Reporting Period”). This Report is accessible at the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) or the Company's official website
(www.mobicon.com).

We understand that the engagement of stakeholders including
shareholders, customers, staff, suppliers and community public is
important to our environmental and social sustainability. During our
operation, we keep communicating effectively with our stakeholders
through various channels including employee workshops, shareholder
meetings, and customer daily contacts to understand their concerns and
expectations. All these feedbacks and communication help us to formulate
our strategies in respect of sustainability and serve as the reference of
materiality assessment in this report.
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We understand that environmental protection is important to our business
and social sustainability. In our operation, we use our best endeavour to
minimize our impact on the environment. Reducing, reusing and recycling
are our strategies for commitment to the environment.

In light of the business nature of our Group, no hazardous waste and
emission was produced. Greenhouse gas ("GHG") was our Group’s main
emission. Electricity usage was the major source of GHG emission. Our
Group continues to improve the operation units’ facilities to enhance
resource efficiency and produce less emission to protect the environment.
The amount of emissions has been reduced as a result of our measures.

Hazardous Waste

In view of our business nature, our Group did not generate substantial
hazardous waste during the Reporting Period. Nevertheless, our Group
has established guidelines for governing the management and disposal
of hazardous waste. All disposal processes must comply with all relevant
laws and regulations.

Non-hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous waste generated by our Group was mainly office paper.
During the Reporting Period, we generated a total of 1,800 kg of waste
paper. To control paper consumption effectively, our Group implements
environmental protection rules and guidance for our staff to follow. We
encourage our staff to make good use of office paper, including collecting
single-sided paper for reuse and double-side used paper for recycle. Also,
we provide green recycle boxes in our workplaces, warehouses and offices
for collecting paper for reuse or recycling.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - Al ARy

During the Reporting Period, our Group had strictly complied with all  fEREHRM - SEERETFEHEEEATE
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating  FIMHBEER KR EREEEN - MK R a5
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation 5 - BEEREETEEVMNELESAER LA
of the hazardous and non-hazardous waste. During the Reporting Period, &I - SEARBEERMERNER I THFEE
our Group did not commit any material breach of or non-compliance with ~ E& FRFIRENEREZEZERNER - BFEE
the applicable laws and regulations related to environmental protection,  FRACERRREEIEH)(F B EHIE603F)
including but not limited to, the Product Eco-Responsibility Ordinance  R{Z=RSREHIEH)(FEEFIFEINE) o
(Chapter 603 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Air Pollution Control

Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Indicators EE 2020/2021 2021/2022
Approximately Approximately
# #
NOx emissions from vehicles (kg) B RS YINOx)
PE(TR) 42.75 40.91
SOx emissions from vehicles (kg) BHHWAFEEY(S0x)
PWE(TR) 0.17 0.13
PM emissions from vehicles (kg) B iR AR Y(PM)
BEmE(Tr) 3.95 3.79
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) (tonnes) ;2= mAEHEhEE
(8EN - 2%3)(WE) 350 293
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) FERFAEAEENEER
per floor area (tonnes/sq m) BHEmeE(EE - 2&%3)
(W8, 7 K) 0.05 0.04
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) BUEEAERE
per employee (tonnes/employee) s 2 (HE1 - 2K%3)
(Wg,/ 1B8) 2 2
Scope 1 direct emissions (tonnes) — HENOEZBENE (W) —
company fleet UNSIEEL S 27 22
Scope 2 indirect emissions (tonnes) — #E2 R E PR E (HE) —
electricity B 321 269
Scope 3 indirect emissions (tonnes) — #EIMEE R E (ME) —
husiness air travel NS 0 0
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Our Group proactively takes effective measures to reduce emissions of
GHG and exhaust gas. Our Group encourages our staff to use virtual video
conference in order to reduce carbon emission from transportation. Qur
Group also encourages our employees to travel by public transport to
reduce exhaust gas and GHG emissions by private cars.

Our Group’s five year plan is to reduce the intensity of the emissions of
GHG and exhaust gas by 5%, using the Reporting Period as the baseline
year.

Our Group will continuously seek ways to minimize our Group's carbon
footprint and improve its energy saving, as well as reducing emissions,
including but not limited to communicating with our Group’s employees on
the importance of environmental issues, and formulating and implementing
measures in reducing GHG and exhaust gas emissions during the course of
business.

During the Reporting Period, our Group continued employing various
energy-saving plans to improve our energy efficiency and to lessen our
power consumption. We educated our staff on the green environment
concept and promoted paperless office, green office and low carbon
life. All new decoration or renovation in our offices or shops used high-
efficiency T5 tubes and LED lighting. Room temperature of our offices
was always kept at 25 degree Celsius to minimize unnecessary power
consumption. The air conditioners and lighting of our office/warehouse
had various zone controls to achieve energy efficiency. Employees were
encouraged to switch off the computers, monitors and equipment when
they were not in use or when the employee(s) was/were off duty to save
energy. Our staff was requested to ensure that air conditioners, lighting
and office equipment were switched off when he/she was the last one
to leave the office/shop. The amount of emissions has been reduced as a
result of our measures.
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Indicators BE

Total energy consumption (kWh) feRAaiES (TR

Total energy consumption per floor area BYAREEERE
(kWh/sg m) BERBEE
(FEB,FEFHK)
Total energy consumption per employee BlulEERRERE
(kWh/employee) (FEREE)
Direct energy consumption (kWh) BEEREZE(TRE)
Unleaded petrol Eiig e |
Diesel Sem

Indirect energy consumption (kWh) — electricity f¥EgeRESR (FEE) —

==
=h

Our business is operated mostly in commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and shopping malls. Water supply/wastewater drainage is
generally managed by the respective building/mall management office.
The management offices do not provide meter or data in respect of the
consumption level to individual tenant, so our Group does not possess
information in respect of water consumption for disclosure. During the
Reporting Period, our Group did not encounter any problems in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. Our Group encourages water conservation and
reduces water wastage in our operation whenever possible.

Our Group's five year plan is to reduce energy consumption by 5%,
using the Reporting Period as the baseline year. Our Group will continue
to educate the employees on energy-saving in order to reduce energy
consumption. Changes will be made to our policies if our Group identifies
any measures that are detrimental to environmental protection.

Our Group is principally engaged in the trading and distribution of
electronic components, electrical components and equipment and
computer products and mohile accessories and trading of cosmetic
products, hence does not involve a significant amount of packaging
materials for the finished products. Nevertheless, for other resources
consumed from our business activities, the Company upholds the principle
of resources management and is committed to the proper use of all
resources.
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2020/2021 2021/2022
2020/2021 2021/2022
Approximately Approximately
#7 #
706,000 583,000
110 92

4,700 4,300
112,000 84.000
35,000 12,000
77,000 72,000
594,000 499,000
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - Al ARGy

Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources
Although the business nature of our Group has little impact on the
environment and natural resources, we still use our best endeavour
to minimize our impact on the environment. Our Group educates our
employees on environmental protection concepts, such as using less
paper, using electronic communication (e.g. email, mobile phone Apps) to
deliver information and avoiding unnecessary printing and use of paper and
ink. The default setting of our Group network’s printers is for both sides
printing to minimize paper consumption. We encourage our staff to print
on both sides, reuse one side printed paper or recycle paper, and to use
network copier for sending or saving files to minimize paper consumption.
At our warehouse, our carton boxes are reused repeatedly and recycled
when they are no longer fit for use. At our offices, we provide recycle bins
for waste paper and plastic bottles and arrange for collection periodically
to reduce waste disposal and recycle materials. Old defective computers,
office equipment and printer cartridges are also collected by recyclers
to reduce environmental pollution. Qur Group is committed to reducing
waste generated from our business operation. We avoid purchasing new
equipment when decorating and/or renovating our office/shops.
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Indicators BE 2020/2021 2021/2022

Approximately Approximately

) 7

Office paper purchased (kg) WAERAEEE(TR) 2,600 1,800

Carton purchased (pce) MAEEIES () 13,000 12,000

Plastic bag purchased (pce) BEREE () 8,000 7,000
Paper/carton recycled (kg) BE4R REAR AUk =

(F32) 8,500 8,000

Plastic bottle recycled (pce) B o U E (15F) 1,000 1,200
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Our Group recognizes the harm brought by climate change to its business
operations, stakeholders and the global economy. Our Group has been
closely monitoring the impact of climate change and is committed to
mitigating its effect on our Group.

Physical Risks: the increased frequency of extreme weathers, such as
typhoons and heat wave can disrupt our Group’s business operations, for
instance, hindering the transportation and travelling of the employees, and
interrupting our Group’s sale and distribution of products to customers. To
minimize potential risks, our Group has adopted work contingency plan to
ensure the safety of the employees and smooth business operations of our
Group under extreme weather conditions.

Transition Risks: Our Group expects that more stringent climate
legislation and regulations to combat climate change and support global
efforts in decarbonization. The enhanced disclosure in the environmental,
social and governance reports required by the Stock Exchange is likely
to result in the increase in compliance costs. Qur Group's reputation is
likely to be affected if our Group fails to implement relevant measures to
meet climate change compliance requirements. Our Group is committed to
assessing the effectiveness of the existing measures and plans in tackling
climate change and monitoring the climate-related trends and policies, so
that our Group can adopt appropriate measures to avoid non-compliances
fines, economic loss and/or reputational risks owing to delayed actions.

Aspect B1: Employment

Human capital is a valuable asset of our Group for the sustainability and
growth of our business. As at 31 March 2022, our Group had a total of
394 full-time employees and 31 short-term and part-time staff. Our Group
follows the principle of meritocracy and employs talent, regardless of
gender, age, marital status, family status, race and religion. All employees
are treated equally and have the same opportunity. To the best information
and knowledge of our directors, there were no discrimination and no
harassment cases reported in our Group during the Reporting Period. The
recruitment, promotion and remuneration of our staff are based on their
abilities and performances without any discrimination.
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To attract, motivate and retain talent, our Group provides our employees
with competitive remuneration and welfare. Based on personnel
performance and our Group’s business performance, there will be a
discretionary bonus at year-end. Our Group will review the remuneration
and welfare provided to individual staff every year in order to maintain our
market competitiveness on the retention of human resources.

During the Reporting Period, our Group had strictly complied with all
relevant employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong that have
a significant impact on us relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promation, working hour, rest period, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefit and welfare, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hog Kong) and all other relevant ordinances. During the Reporting
Period, no claims of employment matters were brought against our Group
by our employees. Our Group provides more holidays and rest periods than
the statutory requirements to our employees. In addition to the entitlement
of paid annual leave and statutory holidays, the office staff has paid rest
days on Saturday and Sunday, and the staff of Wishh! shops has five (5)
days off per month. Our Group also provides medical insurance benefits to
our employees.

Working hours and rest periods are clearly stated in our Group’s employee
handbook (“Employee Handbook”) and comply with the local employment
laws.

Our Group compensates our employees according to the statutory
requirements. Unreasonable dismissal under any circumstances is strictly
prohibited. There was no material non-compliance on part of our Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest periods
during the Reporting Period.
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To boost our staff motivation and increase their sense of belonging, our
Group organizes birthday broadcasting party and snacks sharing. We offer
various kinds of awards for outstanding staff on a monthly, quarterly and
annual basis, e.g. The Best Attendance Award, The Best Cleaning Award
and The Most Customer Visit Award. Our Group has been hiring hearing-
impaired people as full-time employees for several years.

Number of total Employee

By gender
Male
Female

By age

30 or below
31-40
41-50

51 or above

By employment category
Senior management
Middle management
General

Short-term and Part-time

By geographical region
Asia

Europe

Africa

Employee turnover rate

By gender
Male
Female

By age

30 or below
31-40
41-50

51 or above

By geographical region
Asia

Europe

Africa
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Aspect B2 : Health and Safety

We are committed to providing a healthy and safe working environment
to every employee and to providing our employees with the appropriate
equipment, safety information and training. Our Group also helps improve
our employee’s concept of work safety and health by providing relevant
trainings. Qur Group further endeavours to build a healthy and safe
working environment with zero accident and zero work injury.

Prolonged usage of computers is a common problem for our employees in
office. In Hong Kong, our Group provides every employee in office with a
glass stand to elevate the position of the computer monitor or notebook
to encourage staff to have a correct posture when using a computer. We
endeavour to provide a healthy and comfortable working environment for
our employees.

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, our Group is well-
positioned to prevent and control measure in order to safeguard the health
and safety of our staff. We provide pandemic prevention materials to our
staff, the health and safety of employees in times of the pandemic remains
our Group’s primary concern.

During the Reporting Period, our Group had complied with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting our employees from
occupational hazards, including but not limited to, the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety Data BEREEZ2ZHE

Work related fatality ETEREmILT 3R

Work injury cases >3 days (CESKPN
Work injury cases <3 days TEHERSK
Lost days due to work injury ATHEELITIIEEE

Our Group did not record any work-related fatality of the employees during
the past three years (including the Reporting Period).
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Aspect B3 : Development and Training

Our Group believes staff development and training are key factors for the
development and growth of our business. We promote lifelong continuing
learning among our staff and encourage them to equip themselves with
knowledge of the latest technology or development for improvement in
work performance. Our Group provides continuous on-the-job training to
our employees to enhance their knowledge and skill. We also encourage
our staff to attend courses or trainings for personal professional
development organized by external entities.

Our Group was awarded “Happy Company” by the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation in 2021.
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Percentage of employees trained ZIEEHMAT S 2021/2022
Employee trained by gender B RIE D

Male ELis 26%
Female pegc 25%
Employee trained by employment category RERERNES

Senior management = 82%
Middle management A 39%
General —p& 24%

The average training hours for employees by gender and employment
category during the Reporting Period are as follows:

Hours of employees trained ZIES KR
By gender RIS
Male Bt

Female 7

By employment category BRIEEERI2 %
Senior management =

Middle management M

General — e

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

1B B 53R 8L

2021/2022

31
21

28
29



Aspect B4 : Labour Standards

During the Reporting Period, our Group had complied with all relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to preventing
child and forced labour, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Our Group did not have
material non-compliance in relation to laws and regulations regarding
prevention of child and forced labour during the Reporting Period. We do
not accept any forms of forced labour.

We also prohibit employing child labour at any working place under any
circumstances. To ensure that job applicants have met the legal working
age, our Group will inspect job applicant’s documents and qualifications
strictly during the recruitment process to ensure that all relevant laws and
regulations in respect thereof are complied with, and all records will be
kept for re-inspection when needed. During the Reporting Period, we did
not identify any issue related to child labour or forced labour within our
Group.

Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management

Our Group was awarded 1S09001 certification, and we are committed to
maintaining a high standard on purchase and supply chain management
to improve our operational efficiency and manage the environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.

Our Group has our own procurement process to ensure the quality of our
supply chain. We aim to build and maintain trust with suppliers to ensure
stable and reliable cooperation. To ensure the quality of our suppliers, we
implement procedures for the suppliers’ selection, including but not limited
to, performing due diligence on the new suppliers and regular review of
the supplier performance with a view to ensuring the products provided
to our Group are of high quality and safe for their purposes. Our Group
also assesses the suppliers’ track record in complying with environmental
practices and social responsibility when selecting suppliers.

Our Group had a total of 1,197 suppliers during the Reporting Period.

JEEBY : %A
SEBRRETHEHEAEAZENEGRANLE
Tekoahls THREBERMARD - 2FEETR
RCRBIEPD(FREZRETE) - REDPH - &
EAEENETMRESB T EAEEENERT
Ao BTN ZEMME AR RE 5T

HAPIEAR 2 L (A T AR5 AT AE 1T R T 1B
BT - REERKBEEIEETESRK  SHE
FRETE SRREREBENFETMNER
MR EHEBAERMR - EREEML
% ERERIFEEZA - MEHM[ - KERHE
R EE T a5 ERMNEE -

JEEBS - (REHEEEE

EEEFIS09001R:F + BT B R R e
EBEFSEEKT  URREESSMEEHE
EEEBETENRERE SRR - T T HEZR
HERZRE  UWEREERZFPE#EENR

EHEmM °

SEZEFACHRBRIEABREIHEENE
B - CEEEHERELILRFEE - ARRE
EAISENAE - REREEANESE - BfHE
HEREERRF - BEETRNE I ERET
ERFHEME N REHERE - AERE R

REMNERGENSE  REENLE -

EEBEE1N7HEFRELM -

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR



The following is an analysis of our Group’s number of suppliers by
geographical area during the Reporting Period:

Number of suppliers by geographical area

Asia EED)
Africa FEM
Europe BM
Total st

Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility

Product quality is very important to our business and customers and we
have a system to ensure product quality and safety. Under our supply chain
management, our suppliers are requested to provide relevant documents
and certification to us, and we shall ensure that the quality of our products
complies with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us relating to health, safety and intellectual property right
matters. If there are any defects in the products supplied by the suppliers,
our Group would require the suppliers to provide alternatives so that the
products meet the legal and environmental requirements, and are fit for
our Group's uses and purposes. Qur Group constantly communicates with
the suppliers to ensure product quality.

We also use our best endeavour to ensure that our advertisements and
communication to customers do not contain any false and misleading
messages. It is our Group's policy that if any product is found to have
health, safety and/or labelling issues, the sale and/or distribution of such
product will be suspended immediately. Our Group performs internal
checks and testing before the products are sold and delivered to the
customers. Unsatisfactory products will be rectified until they reach the
requisite standards. If there is any quality issue to our Group’s products,
our Group is prepared to recall the products and remedial actions will
be implemented immediately. Analysis of the defective products will be
carried out to avoid future recurrence. Our Group strives to maintain good
relationship with the major customers and is keen to develop business
relationships with new customers.
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During the Reporting Period, our Group did not (i) record any products sold
or shipped which were subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons;
or (i) any complaints in relation to our products sold or services provided.

During the Reporting Period, our Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to advertising
and labelling, e.g. the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). There was no material non-compliance relating to
health and safety, advertising and labeling that have a significant impact
on our Group during the Reporting Period.

We support the protection of intellectual property rights, and comply with
relevant legislation, including the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 599 of the
laws of Hong Kong). Our Group respects, observes and protects intellectual
property rights and undertakes not to sell products that infringe
intellectual property rights.

During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of any material
infringement of intellectual property rights of our Group.

We respect customer’s privacy and we comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in protecting
customer personal data. We only collect personal data relevant and
necessary to conduct our business. Unless with the customer’s consent
or being compelled by law or for reasons of obtaining professional
services such as legal and audit, we will not disclose customer personal
data to any organization or person not belonged to our Group. Also, our
Employee Handbook also clearly prohibits the unauthorized disclosure of
the personal data of our customers. During the Reporting Period, our Group
had complied with all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us relating to privacy matters and there was no non-compliance
case concerning breaches of customer privacy or losses of the personal
data of our customers.
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Aspect B7 : Anti-Corruption

Our Group is committed to maintaining our ethics and integrity at the
highest standard in business. We have zero tolerance to corruption and
bribery. All directors and staff must strictly comply with our Group’s
employee conduct code to prevent any action of bribery and corruption and
they shall also follow relevant rules and guidelines when any conflict of
interests arises. Our Group provided anti-corruption education and training
to the Directors and the employees to raise their awareness in ethical and
corruption issues during the Reporting Period.

It is our Group's policy that our employee is not allowed to solicit or accept
any advantages from our customers, potential customers, or company
business partners. The types of advantages and interests include but not
limited to money, gift, loan, fee, reward, employment, contract, service and
favour.

Our Group has a whistle-blowing policy and we encourage the employees
to report any suspected corruption case directly to our Group's top
management. When a report is received, our Group will conduct immediate
investigations and take appropriate actions to rectify the situations as
soon as practicable. The identity of the whistleblower is protected to avoid
unfair treatment.

Our Group has been in strict compliance with laws and regulations related
to anti-corruption, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, there was
no legal case regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
brought against our Group or our employees.

Aspect B8 : Community Investment

Our Group has a strong commitment to corporate social responsibility to
support the long-term development of the communities. We endeavour
to participate in and organize activities that will bring positive influence
to the communities and take into consideration the communities’ needs
and interests. We concern youth education and vulnerable persons. We
encourage our employees to participate in community charitable activities
to help those in need. Qur Group has continuously employed hearing-
impaired people as full-time employees for several years. Qur Group has
also provided placement opportunities to secondary school students. Our
Group had been awarded the Caring Company Logo for 16 consecutive
years by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our
achievement in corporate social responsibility in areas such as “Giving”,
“Employing the Vulnerable”, “Caring the Employees” and “Caring the
Environment”. Qur Group joined Love Teeth Day 2021/2022 in order to
sponsor “Oral Health Service for the Needy” supported by The Community
Chest.

During the Reporting Period, charitable and other donations made by our
Group amounted to approximately HK$3,000.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

JEEB7 . RE)T

EEBNRERBIEP B RN EERAIEE
o BMEESREEFTAREE - R
BEENE T VABRKRETAEENEERTST
Bl LA IEETTIERZ 0 - B A M ERER
B - PN BE ST REIFEES o ®REH
N EEUEENETET T RIEBHEE MEE
0 LIRSt IS B SR A E R R -

RESENEE  EETSRARMANES - £F
FPRENFAEERENALTRREEREM
HEEMAMES o HFEMANEN A BRRBRETRRE
=Y BE BA - W B 28R
BHEES -

SERBEERBE  FMEIERRNEEESE
EESBEMRAESER REE®RER &
B RFAASYRIEETHRRULARH
BN - BRANF DX EIRE - VB RTRFREF
8 o

SE-EBRRETRERBRABEIRES &
BT LB D) (BRERF0E) - RRE
HE - KB RE T RS RREMBRE - 8152 K
FF R R R BT IR o

EEB8 : HERE

EEAZCENEESET  TIHELRNRESR
B BMEGREELENFIZ TR H2HERE
P AN EAREEZENES - RMEE
ET2EERNAFEE  UWEMEFTEAL -
EEBELFEAEBALEEZBRET - X AT
BLERHREERKE  -SECEET NFRERS
BHEREBRSRIAN HARBEIES - A
RERME LR BRI HBEEMN
2| [BEEI M BEERE | TEABETLEL
SET c EEZNT AFESE T H2021/20225 R
HEEH(ETEALINR O BE#EERE)

WEHME - SEELES REMBRAI3,000/8

o

o %



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B - Al ARGy

HKEX’s Environmental, Social and Governance

Reporting Guide Index

Subject Areas and Aspects

FEHBRNET

BT CGRE 1
CIDEL]

23

KERRETE

Corresponding
section

R

A. Environmental
AR

Aspect A1: Emissions

Environmental
IR

BENEERE

EBEA1 : BB
General Disclosure Information on:
—MRIKEE BRARER MORE RN - MK R L E S -
BEMHELEER
(a) the policies; and
a)  HER: K
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
() ETHETABEAZENEBEZLRONER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emission and respective emissions data
HERURE 2R M AR B BE R BUE
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBRAHNENEE
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
MEAREREZEMEERTE
KPI' A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
MELABREREMEELTE
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emission and results achieved
i UBE HE R B B R PTG AR
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,

reduction, initiatives and results achieved
HEEEENEEEENN A
MR

AR E & B RS i S P 1S

ERNEMERAT - —B-FFH

51



Subject Areas and Aspects

FRARNET

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[EHEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials

—MRIKEE BREAER(BIERR - KREMEREME) B BEE

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and intensity
RENESHEER SHERRAEEREE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
wiEKkERRE

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and result achieved
ot ge R (50 FA A an 51 81 R PRS AR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for

purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
it SREGE KR E R B EREE - AR ARG 8 R
AR

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to
per unit produced

HRmATABERMHNEENBLEESRMHNE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHA3 : BRIERRXRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

—MRIKEE WIREITAHRERRAERENEAZENEER

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

ARG RSHRRELRARBERNEAZELRERNEE AR

FENITE

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[ETEASL : RIRE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

— MR EE BRI MEHERRAIREEHETAELELEN EARGKHEES
HHEE o

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-rated issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

R DR ATREEHETAEERENEAR FHEZEE - &
JELITTE -
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Subject Areas and Aspects

FRARNET

B. Social
BHE

Aspect B1: Employment

[ETEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure
—EREE

KPI'B1.1

KPI'B1.2

Information on:

BRAHFNEMRE  HELRET  TESHE RYP - FEES -

Zt ~ R A RE M S KA -

(a) the policies; and

@ BEoR: R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.

b)) ETFTHEHETAGEARZENHBERLROINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

region

BRI EEEE - FiRERIRMERE S HEBS AR

Employee turnover rate by gender, employment type, age group and

geographical region

IR A HAAE B R B 5 IR B Sk L

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2 : REHZE

General Disclosure

—RBEE

KPI B2.1
KPI B2.2

KPI'B2.3

Information on:

BERHZ2TEREMEREE#2BELEEN

(a) the policies; and

a) BER: K&

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to provision of a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

b)) BEBTFTHEHETAGEARZENHBERLROINER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

ETERREME TR AB R L&

Lost days due to work injury

EIGHEATIEER

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored

RORFTER MR R R ET 25 - ARBERTRERTEA

Corresponding
section

MR

Employment

(=

Health and Safety
fERREZ 2
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Subject Areas and Aspects

FRARNET

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETHEB3 : & K%

General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work and description of training activities.
BRARITEEBRITLERE MBS REEMBER - il
&) o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle management)
RMRREEEN(MERERE  FREREF)EHSHNZI
EEBSL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category

RIER REEERE D - BHEE TRE I FIIRE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EEB4 : & T A
General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI B4.1

Information on:

B IEET REHBTH -

(a) the policies; and

a) B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

(b) ETHETAGEAXZENHBZERLBOIBER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and

forced labour

it s BB AR AR R E T RoRHI4 T
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Subject Areas and Aspects

FRARNET

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EHEBS - HtEHEE
General Disclosure
—RR IR EE

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI'B5.3

KPI B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain
EIRHEENIRE Mt g RARBIR

Number of suppliers by geographical region

i@ Bl 5 H R 2 e

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HAEEEREEREINEN  MERTERAE DI ERR
B URBEERTRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

R AR BRI EE P RIE Rt g ARIE I - LARARE#MT
REERITE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

H EE H RS AN RRREM MR BH - ARG
MITRERTE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[ETB6 : EMEME
General Disclosure

— AR R

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

Information on:

BRAMRHERNBRBNREREZS  BE  RELAMEEE

WA RO ER)

(a) the policies; and

a)  BEE: R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

() ETHETABERZENEBERLRONER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.

PENREXEmABPRZ2EREREEAMARON A D

Lt o

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they

are dealt with.

BB Em MR RFEE AREETTE -

Corresponding
section

MR

Supply Chain
Management
HEEER

Product Responsibility

EmAT
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Corresponding

Subject Areas and Aspects section
FTEHBRNE® HEEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual

property rights.
Mg NREE SV EREHNED

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HilmERBEBAERERALEERF -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.

BB EERRE RALBEER - AREREH 1T RERTTA -

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption Anti-Corruption
[BEB7 : RES R&ES
General Disclosure Information on:
—MRIKEE BRI IEHEE - 9% - BEFAOEEER

(a) the policies; and

(a)  HEER: R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

() ETFTHETABEAZENEBEZZELRONER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
RERBAHETAIEEERHYESEANESTHFARMED
LSS E N

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

P e TE R BRI - ARMERITRERGE -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

ftmESENE TRENRESET -

Aspect B8: Community Investment Community Investment
[EEBS : HERE HERIRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

—RE IR ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ@%éﬁiXTﬂ”“ BEHEREEEMEREEKEDS
= it & F R E
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour

needs, health, culture, sport)
ETEREB(HE - RREEE - BIHFR - EF sy - B8
B)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIBEMPAER(NESFLRFHE) -
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the Reporting
Period.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components, equipment and computer products and
mobile accessories and trading of cosmetic products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong), is set out in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and
“Business review” on pages 11 to 13, of this Annual Report respectively.
An analysis using financial key performance indicators, a discussion of the
Group’s environmental policies and performance, and its compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group as well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” on pages 167
and 168, “Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 120 to 126, and
“Major Customers and Suppliers” of this Report of the Directors on page
63 respectively.Detailed information on the environmental, social and
governance practices adopted by the Group is set out in the sections
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (“ESG Report”) of
this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 74 and 75 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK 0.5 cents per ordinary

share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 3rd January 2022,

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the Reporting Period.

EFEURENFZ2HE ERERHEEAR
REARB D REMBA R (Ffl [ A& )R
EEEZRBERERMEREK -

RRB T —FHREZERAR ﬁﬁTMTJ%"ﬂEE
REEERDHEETF TN  ERTHREREE
PEEMR R TFHREN  URBEBE(HRBZER -

AR BN IR 5 S [ &
ARA M TS MAR LS

ZRIBOHTER

REEBIE R BED (BB EDE6225)KiRZ
MEMBR P EEBFEED B SHNAFRSET
BEF0EZ [TTHAHRE IRENBEEE13E
Z T¥EBEE] - FRBRYBEIUERIELD
AT - ARERZEBRERFBENFREEBAER
‘E@ﬁéﬁ%&%maﬁwfi&%%ﬁE’JME’\%;‘RL‘A
MR mAEEENEZBEHEM EJ%@EA%
167ERFEIBE Y [AFHBEHME] - F1208%
F1268 2 rH&m&’hﬁéﬂJ&%63§Z§$A
&%(IE%}EM%FP;HJW EERE BTN
KRR e REBENNFAERFENEAFR
[R5 - e kEAREN([RE  HEREBR
H)—&n .
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Report of the Directors
HREHRE

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 12th August
2022 to 17th August 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11th August 2022.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 23rd August
2022 to 25th August 2022, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 5th September 2022. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
22nd August 2022.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$3,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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Report of the Directors
HREERE

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's listed shares during the Reporting Period.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric are required to
retire by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

W~ R I Ay
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Report of the Directors
HREHRE

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the”"New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the
New Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with
current Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013. No new share option scheme was
adopted afterwards.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2022, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

B Fo R -
R-BE=FN\ANB - FRARN—AFORE
Rt B ([ ¥ IR A8 D) - e - AAAT
IR AT B AR AT BRI 2 (R R A 7 LR IR
T BHBRET AR RATARBARRRD
(TRA)) - FBRBRH BTG A EHRAFE7E
BITHE -

HERAFTEREA IR BEARERH - &
NEB BRI IR D RS - STIEAER IR
R-F—=F/\AtHER - PRBERATE
Rttt &) o

N ERATEN BRI K AR
W 77 Z BE 5

RZEZZF=R=+—H  ARQASESKE
ZITHA B R EBE A THRARR R R EAGE)
B(THERBHFRBEGKRO([ESHREBEEG])
EXVER) Z B fp - R REFT HEAER
ARRAIREFES LB KAERNEFEEZE
Rt 2R AR - HEREFESRBEENE
XVEPETR8DEk F BT AZERHITESFR S
FIZAESF A ([1ZEESFRI)) BITAIE AR R R EB
BERZMERAR ([T 2EERAE
mE

A< 2 ) 49 JBE T {EL0. 109 7T =2 35 78

Number of shares

R EE
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
EEnE BR/ KR BA R XEER DRER B
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
HtRlEiE L A (Note a)

(Bff5Ea)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BEER L "R (Note a)

(FMi3ta)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 - - 13.50%
HEZE R A ay)
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long - 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
HEREE "R (Note b)

(F45ED)
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Report of the Directors
STl

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Dr.

Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Yeung Man Yi,
Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were
deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFQ. Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same
interest and duplicated each other.

(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company owned as to
50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Wan
Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were
deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 shares of the Company under SFQ. Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and
duplicated each other.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Company had adopted a Code of Conduct
regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code under
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable enquires
with the directors of the Company, the Company was of the view that the
directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout the year.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

S ERATBN B RA B AR
it 77 Z HE £ (42)
A2 T I AR 0. 103 76 2 ¥ Mt (42)
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(a) 1t 25 A% 47 FIM2B Holding Limitedi 4 + 32 A 75 Bl
Rl REEFISHE T HEA50% R50%4E
= o Bt RIRESREED - AR RIS
B {3 22 4% 48 VE 290,000,000 % AN A B D R A
i o AR T RIGHE L T WAR IEE A BRI
= MESE-HR -

(b) 15 A% {7 B1Bestmark Management Limited35 G © 322
AN RBGEBREEREETFEMBLTEAFL0%
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Report of the Directors
[ NCE e

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts

No contracts of significance between the controlling shareholders and any
of its subsidiaries and the Group was made during the Reporting Period.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Board and the management
are concerned, there was no material breach or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact on
the business and operations of the Group.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2022, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

P SRR 65 20 v 2 i 2

RBEFE - ERR KA ENE ARG E
AEBEFLEMEREL -

RTBR B B AR 2 5 B3 H

)E%

RBEFE  REFERE
BREERITETEMERLR
FEARBZEBNEE -

BEAHE  NEBEH
LABRER

3 B R S At N A AR A W] AR
B Z BE

RZBEZ—FZA=+—H BARRESHM
& TﬂAiﬂT@%K RIEHEREEITHA
B)RARE D AR R EERIEES &
HE‘E1'7:<1§‘J%XV*B%2&3“*EZ1I¢X9§W$ Gk
?Z*gﬁﬁgz/ﬂ% .

Number of shares

igvip 4=
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interests Percentage
‘B A "R/ KA BERERA FERER Bot
MZ2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 - 45%
e (Note (a))
(Mg3E(a)
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 - 15%
S (Note (b))
(B 5E(b))
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long - 30,000,000 15%
EMREL L 5o (Note (b))
(B 5% (b))
Notes: B3
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors” and Chief Executive's (a) ZR [EERTETHABRBAREBERES Y
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. *E 5 ] — &Mt (a)
(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's (b) FRHEERTETBRAERRARBEEESZ

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.
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Report of the Directors
HREERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2022, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the Reporting Period, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to
its five largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's
major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 16%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 26%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group's business, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Connected Transactions

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with “related parties” in the normal course of business as defined under
the applicable accounting standards and the details of the material related
party transactions (the “Transactions”) are disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Details of such
connected transactions are as follows:
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On 11 March 2022, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (“Langa”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Brendyn Meyer, an independent third party for
the acquisition of 25% of the equity interests in Swan, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of approximately
Rand 9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$4 million) (the “Share
Acquisition”). Upon completion of the Share Acquisition, Swan is owned as
to 90% by Langa.

The Share Acquisition constituted a one-off connected transaction
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details of the Share
Acquisition, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 11 March
2022.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Transactions falls under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are fully
exempted from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar"). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

On 30th September 2020, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new
tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements in
respect of the lease agreements in respect of Units 1-11 on 7th
Floor, Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor, New
Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk Street,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of one year from 1st
October 2020 to 30th September 2021 at an aggregate monthly
rental of HK$187,000.

On 30th September 2021, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the
same premises for a term of one year from 1st October 2021 to 30th
September 2022 at an aggregated monthly rental of HK$187,000.
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1. (continued)
The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group
and ancillary use.

On 30th September 2020, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreement in respect
of Portion of 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San
Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of one year commencing
from 1st October 2020 to 30th September 2021 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$45,000.

On 30th September 2021, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the
same premises for a term of one year from 1st October 2021 to 30th
September 2022 at an aggregated monthly rental of HK$45,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office (in
respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect
of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$2,784,000 (Note 28) to M-Bar.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, MBM Properties (Proprietary) Limited, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group had entered into (i) a land
purchase agreement with GGP Investments, Pivotal Fund and Redefine
for the acquisition of a piece of land in South Africa (the “Land”)
for a consideration of approximately Rand 17 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$8 million); and (ii) a construction agreement with
Project House and Purple Fountain Properties for the construction of
office, warehouse and carpark bays on the Land for a consideration
of approximately Rand 26 million (equivalent to approximately HK$13
million. To the best of the knowledge, information, and belief of the
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, each of GGP Investments,
Pivotal Fund, Redefine, Project House and Purple Fountain Properties
are independent third parties. Both the purchase of the Land and the
construction agreement constituted discloseable transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details of the two agreements, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 20 December 2021 and 24
December 2021, respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2022 amounted to
approximately HK$65,831,000 (2021: HK$67,484,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 167 and 168.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the
re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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My gt FH A RS
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 74 to 166, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

[5# & 4wt 2 0H

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, EIREH EELBERMANZEHE - RAHAK
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial HI4RE M ERENBANZAETEMNEE - FLH
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the Iﬁxe{?tﬁdﬁ%ﬁr”ﬁ%?éEﬁ%#ﬁ%&ﬁjﬁfﬁﬂf
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,  #fTERIEH - R TS HELFHREHEBNE
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate & o

opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

f 15 48 % 8 A

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 4(a) and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 AMRIRERM 51212  HTEE4(a) R F1FE18 -

We identified the valuation and allowance of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the judgements associated with
determining the amount of allowances on inventories.
ERGFEAREBRRGEAVBTRRBEEZ  NLETFERE
TRENAENERAE - SR MREFENGEREERH
REFTFEE -

At 31st March 2022, the Group held inventories of approximately
HK$188,877,000. As described in the accounting policies in Note 2.12
to the consolidated financial statements, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. As a result, management applied
judgement to assess the net realizable value of slow-moving stocks based
upon the stock ageing report with reference to the current marketability
and latest selling prices of the relevant inventories. Stocks are written
down to their net realizable value where this falls below their cost.
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Our audit procedures in relation to inventory valuation and
allowance mainly included:

BMEFFERBELRBRENEFEIERYRE

e FEvaluating whether inventories were stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value at the reporting date by
comparing the sales prices of inventories subsequent to the
reporting date with their carrying values as at 31st March
2022;

e FBMMMEAMBECEFECSERFER -2
ZA=T—BZEREBEELR - FERSSHBEF
ERSRAABERAZERFEME R 2 RIEETIR

e FEvaluating analysis and assessment made by Management
with respect to slow-moving inventories;

o FHEEEERBEEEMIEZ DN &R

e Checking for individual products that invoiced costs have
been correctly recorded; and

e REXREMEMNERSEHTHIERER &

e Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
were classified within the appropriate ageing category by
comparing individual items in the report with the underlying
documentation.
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Refer to Note 2.10, Note 3.1(b), Note 4(b) and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31st March 2022, the Group had trade receivables amounted
to approximately HK$57,827,000 (net of provision for impairment of
approximately HK$1,666,000).

RZEZZF=A=+—H  EEENEKRBESIEZOA
57,827,000/ 7T (2 $0FR Bk (B £ # 491,666,000/8 7T ) o

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit matter
due to the estimation of expected credit losses involved a significant
level of judgement by management to determine the use of internal and
external data from various sources to establish the historical credit loss
experience and to adjust this experience for expected future changes,
recognizing that these factors are all subject to a certain level of
uncertainty.
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The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure lifetime
expected credit losses ("ECL") allowance for all trade receivables.
Accordingly, management grouped trade receivables with similar credit
risk characteristics and ageing profile. The estimated ECL rates were
based on historical credit loss rates for different groups and adjusted to
reflect the current and multiple forward-looking information on macro-
economic factors that are considered relevant to determine the ability
of customers to settle the receivables in the future. Management
also assessed the sufficiency of the ECL estimation by considering
the subsequent settlement status, credit profile and on-going trading
relationships with the customers.
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Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of trade
receivables mainly included:

M= RNE SRFNENIZEFE28E

e Understanding, evaluating and validating the
key controls performed by management over the
impairment assessment process, in particular those
over the identification of impaired receivables and the
calculation of provisions according to the lifetime ECL
model;

e TH EREREERENAENHBEFRETY
TERGIENE - UE R R B RE R KRIE MR
HIRREEEEEAGEEEN A

e Fvaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect
of the assumptions made, such as historical payment
records, correspondence on any disputes or claims with
the customers and subsequent records;

o FEBRMEREMERRNBASBE - PR ENK
R EMEEFUHHEFRERMNBNCHE
RigEEMNTE  FHEREHBATEEFERXY
B

e Understanding the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end, the
Group’s on-going business relationships with the
relevant customers and past settlement history of the
customers through discussion with management;

* FBMEBEETIR  NTERFAAZSEEXR
BHEKESEFNEN - EEEEEHESNR
BEBTIREARAREAEPOBEERNER

e (Checking the computation of the amount of provision
and evaluated the expected future changes in credit
risks in management’s assessment by sample checking
the inputs to the assumptions to external data sources;
and

° BBWMARE R IBMRNEABRE N EBUR K
R REREBLENGTERFEERENEMEN
TREAEE R R R ES) &

e Performing testing, on a sample basis, of the accuracy

of the trade receivables ageing report.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BPMWER  REGEMBERRBEEESIAFHE
MR EFF AR MERNERERARISAIE
R XHABREHRMER ORI RS  FM
ERET (EREE)ME - BRIt 2SN RERIEE
B & - HATEARENRT A EAEMDA
T8 FEREERER - AEREFESKFHR
& BETERBRR(EBRTELN)ETHE
it ER-ERERUAFER AR - R
BRAL AT A B RFF SR RRBIE - IR A ETRH T
BRRELRERAEZERAMBRRERERK
FETEIRA AT EH R EORTE - RIB BV EERRIR
AATRARAEE R o

ERBEE BB EREITEBIED - HFE
BT EEHE - RIS TERREEE - BT

. B M EEE R EF R R M S BAR A
MBEBRFEEAERBANER - &
STRITEIEF AR E LR - A
REBRFRTEENENERE  (FRR
PMBRAER - ARREFAT RS R P
woRE ERER ERRAZZE
MRAEEZEZ £ - Bt ReE %R EKFE
i B ) B K B AR Rl O [ B = A R B
BHHERERMEBNERNHERRA A

b -

TR EET MM AR
EMESEF BEEMLIESH
NEEEN AR ELER -

Wit
E5H

. FEEEMRAETBRNOEE M RIE
HEstEF AR REN SR -

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR



° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
T3 ST A SR o

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 29th June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A iH AR AR

For the year ended 31st March 2022 &

TFEF -

FZA=1T—HLLFE

2022
S8
Notes HK$'000
ihE=s FET
Revenue g 5 501,269
Cost of sales S EE AN (369,501)
Gross profit ES 131,768
Other income and net gains Hip g A Rz %58 6 2,812
Distribution and selling expenses SR E B R (35,179)
General and administrative expenses ~ —fRITHREERER (69,323)
Operating profit LR T 30,078
Finance costs [LEZ N 8 (2,642)
Profit before income tax BT E R AR 217,436
Income tax expense FrisFif X 9 (6,296)
Profit for the year F R F 7 21,140
Profit attributable to: FE(REA] -
Equity holders of the Company RKAREZIZEEA 13,211
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR RE S 1,929
21,140
Earnings per share attributable to the ~ FRAQAREFEA A
equity holders of the Company during  fE{5 &A% &7
the year
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — R HE BN 10

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

2021
—E-—4F
HK$'000
FET

456,369
(346,516)

109,853

11,398
(34,193)
(63,819)

23,239
(2,700)

20,539
(1,950

18,589

12,151
6,438

18,589

6.08

BB IERERE M SR NIRE -



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

o 2 I A 2

For the year ended 31st March 2022 2 — & — —

F_A=1T—HLLFE

Profit for the year FWm A

Other comprehensive income His2EUY A

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ B r] & #7348
profit or loss FEmZIHA

Currency translation differences: ERBREER

— Subsidiaries — B AR

Item that will not be reclassified HEETEENHHEE
subsequently to profit or loss Bm A

Revaluation gain on property, Y - R R
plant and equipment Z B H W E

Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEBRA
net of tax (B INBr#%IE)

Total comprehensive income Z2EBA(BIX) 85

Total comprehensive income attributable to: B2 EWA LRSS

Equity holders of the Company RATRERFEAA

Non-controlling interests FEPERR AR

2022
S8
HK$'000
THET

21,140

2,358

23,498

ERAEEERAT - —BE-—FFH

2021

T —F
HK$'000
FAT

18,589

14,957

45

15,002

33,591

20,871
12,720

33,591
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A E B RDLR

Asat31st March 2022 R—ZE - —F=H=+—H

Notes
Ft 5
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE 14
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 14
Intangible assets B EE 16
Investment properties BEME 15
Goodwill ] 16
Other receivables Hofth U R IA
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 18
Trade receivables FEUE 5 ER 19
Other receivables and deposits Hip el E K igd
Current income tax recoverable A W Bl BN EA AT S ¢
Cash and bank balances B RIRTT4E 20
Total assets BEH#E
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERHE SR 2
Other payables and accruals A FE T ROE R E R B
Contract liabilities aHNBE
Loan from a shareholder R E 22
Lease liabilities Heak 14
Short-term bank borrowings BHRITIEE 23
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFR SR & (&
Net current assets REEEZRE
Total assets less current liabilities EEZEBERABAES

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

2022
S8
HK$'000
THET

39,316
8,141
138
4,685

2,016

54,896

188,877
57,821
17,023

82
37,220

301,029

355,925

33,331
20,619
3,240
30,000
5,929
69,292
284

162,695

138,334

193,230

2021

B —F
HK$'000
FAT

186,590
56,868
13,871

178
33,525

291,032

334,479

40,985
15,327
1,294
25,000
4,188
69,937
102

156,833

134,199

177,646




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR M BIRDLR

As at31st March 2022 R—ZE - —F=H=+—H

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&T FAT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 24 1,698 1,646
Lease liabilities HEHE 14 3,363 3,125
5,061 4,771
Net assets EEZHE 188,169 172,875
Capital and reserves attributable AABERIZEA
to the equity holders of iR R S
the Company
Share capital RN 25 20,000 20,000
Reserves i 117,279 105,155
137,279 125,155
Non-controlling interests FIERESR 50,890 47,720
Total equity EREE 188,169 172.875

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June 2022 and signed on its behalf

by:

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE

el
Chairman

FE

RAMBHBRENR_FT-__FX A-TNLARE
FEHERKETR YA TIEERRESE

5E -

YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
BEE

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

I ERITEAREL

ERAEEERAT - —B-—FFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HeREmEER

For the year ended 31st March 2022 HZE - T - —“F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2020 R-F-ZENA-H2 &% 20000 16,706 00 (4447 49 8825 8628 B0 14148

Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EMALE - - - 8675 [ VA L] 2081 1270 33591

Release of revaluation reserve upon nE BERRETERERE
depreciation of property, plant and fhEE

equipment - - - - 51) 01 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ~ 2E F— M B A AEARER

of a subsidiary 7HRE - - - - - - - 200 200
Dividends of the Company: ARARE:
2020 final dividend “E-TERERS - - - - - (1,000) (1,000) - (1,000}
2021 interim dividend “E--FhERe - - - - - (1,000) (1,000) - (1,000)
Balance at 31st March 2021 R-B--£=f=1-A

A 20,000 16,706 800 (15,767) 4,989 98427 105,155 47720 172875

Representing; AER:
2021 final dividend “EI-ERERS 1,000
Others £ 97401

%421
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For the year ended 31st March 2022 Bl E —E - —F = H=+—HI-FE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ADRREREARE
Reserves

e

Non-
Share  Share  Capital Translation Revaluation Retained Total controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits  reserves interests  equity
Rt ROEE KARE RERE EURE BHEN RREST FRRER RR4E
HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'00D
Ten Thn Thér Tern Thn ThEr TEr TEn  TEn

Note 25) (Notg]
(Riztos) (Hizt)
Balance at 1st April 2021 R-E--EMA-Rz&R 20000 16,706 800 (15767) 499 98427 05055 4170 17287
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EMALE - - - 2087 151 1321 15,449 8049 23498
Acquisition of non-controlling interest of ~ WESEHERTZ
subsidiaries SERER - - - - -3 (13m0 [4Me) (574
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHNBAT - - - - - - - (313) (313)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT RHEAR
interests of a subsidiary ERERIRE - - - - - - - (150) (150)
Dividends of the Company: FARRE :
2021 final dividend “Eo-ERERE - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1,000
2022 interim dividend “EoCERERE - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - (1,000
Balance at 31st March 2022 W-E--£=A=t-Az
3 20000 16,706 00  (13680) 5140 108313 117219 50890 188,169
Representing; AER:
2022 final dividend ZRICERERE 1,000
Others =0} 107,313
108,313
Note: BEE -

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares BAFEEEAARCRITERRZEE  BRE-_ZTZ—
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of FOA+N\BETZEALZBRDATE 2B R B RA
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took AR5 % E A MR & 2 A ZZE o

place on 18th April 2001.

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mABEmER
For the year ended 31st March 2022 & =2 — T -~ F = A=+—HIFE

2022 2021

—E-F —EE = —E

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= FET FET

Cash flows from operating activities REXKEE > HERE
Net cash generated from operations (R IE I g I S HER 26 34,713 28,568
QOverseas income tax paid BAHEINTERL (5,863) (4,799)

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

Overseas income tax refunded TBINTIS TR T 52 23
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EAEENEH (86) (368)
Net cash generated from operating CEEBEE 2R F5E

activities 23,424
Cash flows from investing activities REFEEEHERE
Interest received B UF B 254 169
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEMEE

equipment 14 (12,199) (1,027)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE - BEX

plant and equipment TS EIE 273 61
Purchase of intangible assets BREETEE (95) (52)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a HE—ERBARAE

subsidiary BRemAFE 30 146 -
Net cash used in investing activities BB EHFHH IR FE (11,621) (849)
Cash flows from financing activities REEZBHELZHERE
Interest paid BAFE (2,642) (2,700)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Ui % fEI[T B A &2

of subsidiaries FEfE RS R RS (5,741) -
Dividends paid to the Company's BIRFARARREZKE

shareholders (2,000) (2,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BEIRT—EMHEA A

interest of a subsidiary ISR T IR B (150) (200)
Loan from a shareholder AR E =X 5,000 -
Repayments of a shareholder’s loan EEBREEHR - (7,000)
Repayments of lease liabilities EBEHEEERE (7,298) (9,504)
Repayments of short-term bank EREHRIRITEE

borrowings (129,197) (116,109)
Proceeds from short-term bank RERITIEEREHK

borrowings 129,452 114,044
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHE B IR FEE (12,576) (23,469)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HABERER

For the year ended 31st March 2022 HZE - T - F=A=+—HIFE

Net increase/(decrease) in cash REeRBELEEY
and cash equivalents B,/ ORd)BE
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzHEe RIREEEYD

beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes & S &&) 2 g/ 2

Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESRRSEEY
end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and B NESEEY

cash equivalents: RO -
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 20
Bank overdrafts RITHEL 23

(894)

29,7112 28,830
(169) 1,776
29,712

37,220 33,525
(3,058) (3,813
34,162 29,712

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic components, electrical components
and equipment and computer products and mobile accessories and
trading of cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company's annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 1 BV 205 A B

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Amendments to standards adopted by the Group

(a) The Group has adopted or early adopted the following amendments
to standards that have been issued and effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on or after 1st April 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any significant impact
on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

2.1

(a)

A BORIEE )

B LA (48 )

FEERA 2 ERINEET
AEEERARERFERBAA TR T
ZFWA-AkzRABZAEBRY
B E B R MRz ERANERT

BRMBMERANESE & MEEEREFE-
BEEAENSE  BEY  FIRE
BMERANETS - BEH
BREENESRREEYR
BREENF6RZETA

EIMERT AR S 0B 1 B A HE R A

SHEBRERNEATE  LRBEIE
HAHESRARRARBREATE

ERNEMERAT - —B-FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 1 BV 205 A B

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards and amendments to standards not yet

adopted

(b) New standards, amendments to existing standards which have
been issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
on 1st April 2021 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

84 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

[\°}

(b)

FREGFBORBEE 2)

L ()
4 R BRAY 2 R AT ZE R R ZERIMEET

BEEGER-_Z-_—FHNA—AMBZ
MREERAREN  BXEIBFRANZ
Fral R - MEEANEFTA

ERUBHREEN  RBRAGREBEIAR
E175%

ERNBREENEIN HOER 2 EL

A HE

ERUBREENE0 REAZHARSARREED
RREAGHENE ErHMNEELESTE
BREZBITR

EREHENEIT  BABENEARYIERIR

PACHEN EARBESHNERET
(Z2-%%)

EAGLEAENR S BRNRE

EAMBREENE

e LA HE

EAGIEAIESE  GHEHMER

ZEBFTA

BAGIRARENS HE-JHELNEAEREE

PACHIEN RRMETHIR:

BEEHEANRI0E  NE  BERREERER

pACHES BRI PG
EBS RS, BEESN—EITAHON
ZIBETA N
BRUBREEN ERMKREEN-_Z-N\F
pACHES ECR DR ERYE
! REZTEZ=ZF—A— B ERRZF
EHAR A K
z R-E-—=F— A B UEHRZE
JE HRRE A Ak
3 R B #Rsk A& G 2 F S EAR A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /N
ARE

2.1

2.2
221

S s R Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New standards and amendments to standards not yet
adopted (continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position to state whether the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group’s and the
Company’s results of operations and financial position.

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of financial position respectively.

[\°]
k.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /N
A

2.3
231
(a)

Mobicon

B A

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
business, the equity interests issued by the Group, the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /N
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2.3
231
(a)

(b)

S s R Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration
is classified either as equity or a financial liahility. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognized in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

2.3
231
(a)

(b)
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2.3.1
(b)

232

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an
investment because of a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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(a)

(b)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the
net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
“finance costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within “general and administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

(a)

(b)
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2.5
(c)

Mobicon

S B R M

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognized in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a

foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
properties, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
part of a valuation gain or loss in “other income and net gains” or
“general and administrative expenses”.
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2.7

Mobicon

S B R M

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

25 to 60 years
4 t0 10 years
4 t0 10 years

4 10 6 years

Leasehold properties
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.8
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

S s R Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.1. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Licenses

Separately acquired licenses are shown at historical cost. Licenses
acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value
at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.

Amortization methods and periods
The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Licenses 3 years

(ii)

(iii)
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2.9

2.10
(a)

Mobicon

S B R M

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.
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(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (the “FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as financial assets at amortized cost.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented
in other income and net gains together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are included in general and
administrative expenses.
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(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
loss associated with its debt instruments carried at amortized
cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
3.1 details how the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. For other
receivables, impairment is measured as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then impairment
is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position where
the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.12

2.14

S s R Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and excludes borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventories are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandize sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognized at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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2.16

2.17

Mobicon

BV 285 e M

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains
rights to receive consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to
the customer. The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognized as contract
assets if the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the contract
is a liability and recognized as contract liabilities if the measure of
the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as
finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the
entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.19

2.20

2.21

(a)

Mobicon

S B R M

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business comhbination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liahility where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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2.22
(d)

2.23

S s R Mk

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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(a)

(b)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of control to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when control over such
products is transferred, being when the products are delivered or
shipped, the customer has accepted the products and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers” acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location and the risk of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognized when the Group has received
deposits from the customers. The Group records these as other
payables and accruals in advance in the liahilities section of
the consolidated statement of financial position. Such contract
liability is recognized as revenue when such goods are delivered to
customers.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is recognized
using the original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized over time based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided because the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

U variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included
in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.
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2.25

2.26

2.27

S 5 A P

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Lease (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's
useful life. While the group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not
to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without
a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and
small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(Note 27). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognized as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to
make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.28 Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i1) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

2.28
(a)

(b)

FEERBORBE =)

I B N\ £
AALTHEORREKREREAREA

R -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

WmEz AL

A AN B i il i K R 2
T

UASBEERTE N X

AAEENAEBMTARZEE
EIEAE -

MBI A MEREGAE T —
T et

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

SERRAZEERN - £E82 %
B AT
—RERAZ-EBOBELR
HAERA (AR —EBNEA
A WEARRARMBAR)
ZEBRASENAA-F=H
A EAT
—REMAESFEBENAEA
A ME-ERARE=FERE
BB AT
ZERAAEES —FAAEH
BB 2 HBE R O ERITR
BEMILTERIE B ¢

==

i

B8 X (a) Pl A THEHI s X

T m

o 3§
=
H=
iy

Ralifft ANt HEREEATE
AEZER(XZERYAR)E
ZEBABMEP—FKE R

AASEBRANEE 2 FRRR
HEIBERABRBZEBIH
BEEZERKERR -

AANLTZERFERERBRAZEX
ATBHEZERBIHZIRENKE @ XK
ATBEZERRIFGZEZREKE -



(a)
(i)

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.

(a)
(i)
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHREEEM e
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)

(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) R ()

(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) & 57 B (42 )

TRETRBE B A E 2 Bk
B AEBERAEBARSFIEET
R e A RE DY RS (RS EE
RAEATEED) -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and

110

liabilities).
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit Increase/
foreign before (decrease)
currency rate income tax in equity*
BRFTS BLAT
HEER mAE M/ Bmgm/
A/ (TH) 2 (R )*
% HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT TR
2022 —E-CE
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fHE e ETEE

If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD

If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD

If South African Rand weakens against USD

3 & B X TTIHE

BT TRy 4=
i AR T R T T HE
fif e AR E
f

If South African Rand strengthens against USD {473 3EESH ZFHE

2021 —E--F

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD WAt ETRE 5% (578) -
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD e ETTHE -5% 578 -
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD M THETEE 5% (251) -
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD fHEFT IR TR ETHE -5% 251 -
If South African Rand weakens against USD HEEBERETEE 5% (471) -
If South African Rand strengthens against USD {4 sEESH E T FHE -5% 47 -

* Excluding retained profits " TR RT
(i) Price risk i) 1ERER

The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years

ended 31st March 2022 and 2021.
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3.1
(a)
(iii)

=

B 285 e M

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMHEEER e
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)
Market risk (continued) (a) mE R ()
Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk lii) Bz wE RN FEFERRE
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly REEBZFEEHRLEZRGHEE
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings RITIEE - REBMEREZEEEHR
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest- REEEAmMHReRNEMNER IR - RNE
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings BB BEZHBERGREVEREW T
have been disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial 23%%FR o AN S B3R IR I AR {1 SR SR IR
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate KR BEEE—EBEEXRMNXER
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate WeREEERZEEREATERR
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRERWBEMEHEZTTE » K
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held SEBRFAEHMAN(BRTEREBEZY
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the )RR EE G R ARG IR
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity. BHBURE ©
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit Increase/
in basis before (decrease)
points income tax in equity*
BRETEBA
E¥ R/ wRI R
(k) (’4) (RD)*
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEL
2022 —E-CF
Floating rate borrowings FREE 50 (346) -
Floating rate borrowings FEfE (50) 346 =
2021 —B--f
Floating rate borrowings FREE 50 (350) -
Floating rate borrowings PEEE (50) 350 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEIEBIE A

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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3
3.1
(b)

Mobicon

S B R M

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its financial assets
at trade receivables, other receivables and deposits, and cash and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, and cash and bank balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with cash deposits at banks since they are substantially deposited
at medium or large-sized listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. The existing counterparties
do not have default in the past. Therefore, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for impairment of
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on nature of customer accounts and shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk (continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31st March 2022 and 2021
was determined as follows for trade receivables:

Individual assessment EEEEE

Collective assessment £ HEET
(based on due dates) (R2|HAH)
0to 60 days ZE60H
61 to 120 days 6121201
121 to 180 days 121Z180H
181 to 365 days 181£365H

3

31
(b)

o 5 R\ B 4 B )

s R BE R & (2)

=EERE(E)
BIEZEE R _FR_F=—
FZRA=+—BZEKESRREBR
HEEMT

51,803 50,919
6,851 6,612
169 154
443 142

59,493 51,821

Individual assessment {ERIEH 100% 218 (218) -
Collective assessment ST
(based on due dates) (RE|HH)
0to 60 days ZZE60H 2% 56,798 (997) 55,801
61 to 120 days 61E120H 6% 987 (57) 930
121 to 180 days 12121801 21% 92 (19) 73
181 to 365 days 1812365H 84% 395 (331) 64
58,490 (1,622) 56,868

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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3.1
(b)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31st March 2022
and 2021 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

At 1st April 2021

31
(b)

RZZE-Z—FMNA—H

A R b B B )

o 5 L o I 6 (42

EERB(E)

BB SERSEREKE A BEE
BT LAY o R E Y AR v i
EeE(ETFEE) REAREERER
ERE R B R AL AN -

RZEBEZ—FR-F-_—F=A=+—
BZRERKEZEREEBEBERFIER
B HERMT:

Provision s

Reversal o

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEAR
Exchange difference MEH Z5

At 31st March 2022 R-ZB-—_F£=A=+—H

At 1st April 2020 R -ZFNA—H 1,432
Provision B 208
Reversal e d | (119)
Exchange difference PE N ZTE 101
At 31st March 2021 R_E-_—F=A=+—8 1,622
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3.1
(b)

(c)

B 285 e M

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31st March 2022 and 2021, the Group has assessed that
the expected loss rate for other receivables and deposits was
immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance for other receivables and
deposits was recognized.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve barrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2022, the Group had several short-term bank
borrowings including bank overdrafts with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$69,292,000 (2021: approximately
HK$69,937,000).

(c)

S0 % D B 48 B )

B 5 R B R % (42)

=EERE(E)
RZBEZZFRZFE_—F=A=+—
B AEBFEHEMERFBERZSZ
TEHBIERY TEK - At - WERE
b JE WS FRIE R $2 6 FER S B A o

REEZ A
EXQRAAERDESRRERE Z &K
B YESREEERDESRARER
mim o NEEAREZES  fHEE
HESIARPECEEFTE - A5EE
BREARERHRBELEBEERE &
ERBARERASREARARESE
EERAENISER EB2RHES
[\ o

R-BE-_—_F=A=+—H K&EHA
EHERPRTEE(BERTER)
BRI {E 49 469,292,000 T( B = —4 :
#769,937,000/5 7T ) °

ERNEMERAT - —B-FFH
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 MEEEEH )

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WMBEBEHEEE)

(c)  Liguidity risk (continued) (c) mBELEMEE
The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities TEBEEREERBENREBBRES
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted RAARMBEREAE 2B BERAT ¢

payments, was as follows:

2022 —E-CE
Trade payables ERBAENR 33,331 33,331 33,331
Other payables and accruals — E & 28
[T ER 20,619 20619 20,619
Loan from a shareholder REEZ 30,000 30,000 30,000
Lease liabilities HEERE 6.01 6,529 10,229 9,292
Short-term bank borrowings  JEERSRITEEE 279 69,465 69,465 69,292
159,944 163,644 162,534
2021 —EC-F
Trade payables REvESY 40,985 - - - 40,985 40,985
Other payables and accruals — E A fERFUE
fE;tEF 15,327 - - - 15,327 15,327
Loan from a shareholder REER 25,000 - - - 25,000 25,000
Lease liabilities RERR 490 4,585 2907 3 - 7,833 7313
Short-term bank borrowings 42 EiRITEE 274 70,022 - - - 70,022 69,937

155,919 2907 3 - 169,167 158,562
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including loan from a shareholder
and short-term bank borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at
31st March 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

S0 5 B 4 P 42 )

2 A e 2 B

FEEEREAY BIEAREAEET
ST 7 B H o T B R IR 2 [ 4R
RAEMIEREE ABERR LRI
PR LR IEE SRR o

REFRABELERE  AEEAHE
ARFEKNZBREEE MERREER
ARBEITHRHHEEERE °

AEBREERBLRERERN - It
KNREBFERAESEETE - &
BERDREEAB(BREREREE
HIRTER) AR MRS EEYHE -

AREZRBEERTE KRB
R—Z-_—5=F=+—RAZEEBE
P&

2022 2021

—E-CF T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Total borrowings [Ep= ks 99,292 94,937
Less: Cash at bank and in hand W RITReTRNEFES (37,220) (33,525)
Net debt (EvEpeE- 62,072 61,412
Total equity TS HAEE 188,169 172,875
Gearing ratio EEAGLE 33.0% 35.5%

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.3  Fair value estimation 33
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined

as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

(level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level
3).

At 31st March 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any financial
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

3.4 Financial instruments by category 34
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

A5 R B A P 42 )
PG B 5t

TREGEESEITAAFEIEZ S
BTA  SSARTHT :

. HRAEESREELEMS R
BOREHARB)(E—H) -

. BE—RBIEZIREN  TEE
(BMR B ) sk R 5 (BN B AE 6T
EVBRMBrEESBBERAR
(B8 -

. WIKBERMBTHEIEZE
EXRERRAEFERAEE
ABE)(FE=R) -

R-B- R T —F=H=+—
B AEETEESMIZEARAFESE
FRFEZEMEERARE -

FERN EB-—HR F_ARE=ZHHL
BEMBEASRHEEER -

OB 812 2 S TR
RBEEH - £oMT MR 2 EEE
T -

2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortized cost BRSNS EZ SR EE
— Trade receivables —EWE ZEER 57,827 56,868
— Other receivables and deposits —Hip W ZIE iR S 12,657 9,512
— Cash and bank balances — 04 RIRTT4# 37,220 33,525
Financial liabilities SREE
Liabilities at amortized cost RS ECABE
— Trade payables —ENE SRR 33,331 40,985
— Other payables and accruals —HipENRBERESEA 20,619 15,327
— Loan from a shareholder —REER 30,000 25,000
— Lease liabilities —HEBE 9,292 7,313
— Short-term bank borrowings —RHEIRITIEE 69,292 69,937
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(a)

(b)

(c)

S 5 A P

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of receivables

The provision of impairment for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses significant judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on
the Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1(b).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

(a)

(b)

5K & wHl R BRI B
AEEBERAECREAMLEE B
EREMERTHERHEAEANS
IR - RPARAb RN -

AEBEPRBEL AT RER - BRE
& FH 2@ AFIRZARINERH
BRER - TXAWRAATEEEHT
—EMRFEZEERABREEZRE
HEARFE 2 At RRR -

17 8 2 ] 5 B
FEZASRFESREEBBRERM
AEERETR Z M RARREEM
EEBUBEZ METRARZRIEA - 25
SNRBERITTRALREUEEERZSB
EHELREDL - EPRREFREF
BF 219 ARGBAELERE
B EEERNEREHRGEEAEHT
ERE bR -

JRE Wk JH 2 W AT

CRMEEREBERENREENRAR &
BSRTEHEBERmMET c EHELHZER
BREMERAEZGASER - A%
EEFRERHE - BEAEHERK
SEMBERES - RITMBBRARR
EEBEPHEEAMATEEHEmME
oo BT 2 B RS R A B 5
ISAMTEES DR E -

Fir 5 B

REBABMZ BRDEER ZAFHR -
REEMFHRBERHSEE - AFHEKX
HIE - MEEEBBES  AREEX
BEEATRHEAEZHERIEA - %
ERRREBIABREBY L LK
BIRA ZEZRSHAEEETERH
3Rz B ] 2 BN B P A B S IR S P 1S 75
BRERTE -

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR
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Revenue and Segment Information 5 Wt Ko EE R
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows: FRER2ZWELT -
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue g
Sales of electronic components, HEETILH ERTH
electrical components and equipment Kiges 360,776 293,733
Sales of computer products, mobile HEEMMEM - FHEH
accessories and service income LA K2 AR A U A 71,659 97,057
Sales of cosmetic products HE SR 62,834 65,579
501,269 456,369

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
The Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic and Electrical Trading
Business — Distribution of electronic components, electrical
components and equipment; and (ii) Computer Business — Retail
sales of computer products, mobile accessories, distribution of
computer products and provision of IT outsourcing and solution
services and (iii) Cosmetic and Online Retail Business — Trading
and retail and distribution of cosmetic products through retail
shops and online channels.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses and finance costs.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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5

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2022 are as

follows:

Revenue from external customers

RENFEF2KE 360,776

Time of revenue recognition
— Ata point in time

WA
-RE-RE 360,776

- Qver time -R-BEERA -
360,776
Segment results A 28328
Finance costs BERK
Profit before income tax BHEBRAER
Income tax expense (Note 9) FREH R (B 3E9)
Profit for the year FRER
Other segment items included in the ESINGABREL
consolidated statement of profit or loss AEERWT :
are as follows:
Amortization of intangible assets ENEERY
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment %1% - BER&ERE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREAENE
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE - BE Rk s
equipment
Provision for impairment of trade receivables [l E BEFERE
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade U E 53R EAERE
receivables
Provision/(reversal| for impairment of slow- = EHERRE/(&@)

moving inventories

We %5 2 o SR E R 2)

S

B _E=A=t+—HIFEZ

DEPEEMT ¢

11,659

15,346
2313

11,659

m

501,269

62,834 498,956
= 2313

62,834 501,269

1,004 30,078

(2,642)

2143
(6,296)

21,140

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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5

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2021 are as

follows:

5

We 25 o SR E R 2)
BE-—T-—F-A=+—AIFEY
DELEMT :

Revenue from external customers REMREF zHE 293,733 97,007 65,579 - 456,369
Time of revenue recognition R
- Ata point in time -RE-KE 293,733 9,989 65,579 - 455,297
~ Over time ~R—BERERA - 1072 - - 1072
293,733 97,057 65,579 - 456,369

Segment results nEEE 16,454 4329 2478 (22) 23,239
Finance costs BERA (2,700)
Profit before income tax BR AR B R AR A 20,539
Income tax expense (Note 9) FrERRT () 1,950)
Profit for the year EREE 18,589
Other segment items included in the EfFINGEERERL

consolidated statement of profit or loss AHEENT

are as follows:
Amortization of intangible assets B EESH 37 - - - 37
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - HE R RETE 1438 120 486 - 2044
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERELERE 2,255 4,306 2,989 - 9,550
Gain on disposal of property, plant and WENE  BEREE UG

equipment (29) - - - (29)
Impairment losses on goodwill BEHERE 190 - - - 19
Provision for impairment of trade receivables [EWE SETHERE 207 1 - - 208
Reversal of provision for impairment of EWESENRERERE

trade receivables (114) 13) 2) - (19
Provision/{reversal) for impaiment of slow-  B®EERERE /(BE)

moving inventories (2.919) 142 (20) - (2,797)

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties, intangible assets,
goodwill, inventories, trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances. Unallocated assets comprise current income tax
recoverable and certain other receivables.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2022 and
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as
follows:

We i B 53 5B & B ()

PHAETERENE  BERRE
ERRAE  RANE  BVEE B
B FE - EACE PR R MR
HURRSRBITES - ROEAER

R AU BN B A AS B B A T At B SR

DHABERERLERE - KROBREER
EHEMENFARESFERSER -

REFNDEEBREREDE  BHER
i ERAREEREBILEE -

RZE-_—_FZA=Z+—HZOHEE
FEBUREBEZALEFEZIERDE
ERNBWT -

Electronic
and
Electrical Cosmetic and
Trading ~ Computer Online Retail
Business Business Business Unallocated Group
E¥ ER fttm
THEE RAL

X BRERE FERE iy FRE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

TRT TET TER TER TER

Assets BE 305,362 21,514 20,207 ) 355,925

Liabilities af 140,478 12,515 10,674 ! 167,756

Additions to non-current assets A EIEREEE 16,694 3,036 1,732 21,462
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2021 and
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as
follows:

We 25 B 43 FRE B 42)
RZE-—F=A=+—B2oHNEE
FEBEBUAREBEZBIEFEZERDE
ERNBWT :

Assets BE 282,005 27,560 21,399 3,515 334,479
Liabilities afE 131,726 12,961 12,829 4,088 161,604
Additions to non-current assets ~ REIEREEE 1,456 1,565 2321 - 5,342

The Group's revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia
Pacific, South Africa and Europe.

Revenue W

Hong Kong (country of domicile) EE(FMEERR)
Asia Pacific 5 A M &

South Africa EES

Europe BUM

Other countries HiE xR

AEBZBRTBREEE  EAH
[~ FEZEREUM

222,595 241,310
121,784 94,490
143,153 109,362
12,786 9,099
951 2,108

501,269 456,369

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is
located.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

Wasi B PR EBRR DM -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B T 5 A M

5

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

We %5 2 o SR E R 2)

165,413 165,971
31,199 27,473
130,715 110,668
25,756 26,852

Total assets BEEHRE
Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 55 A&
South Africa F3E
Europs ESl
Unallocated assets KOfEEE

353,083 330,964
2,842 3,515

355,925 334,479

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

BEMEREEMEMLSE

Additions to non-current assets REBEERHEE
Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 5 A&

South Africa FIES

Europe BOM

4,901
1,544
14,559
458

21,462

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific, South Africa and Europe are
approximately HK$5,119,000, HK$10,312,000, HK$24,284,000 and
HK$13,165,000 respectively (2021: approximately HK$5,776,000,
HK$9,587,000, HK$11,513,000 and HK$13,883,000 respectively).

FRBDEEZRNEREBEMEDIE -

UREE - dmAHE - FIERBUMZ IE
REBEELE(SRIARIN DN E
5,119,000% 7T ~ 10,312,000 7T - 24,284,000
I & 13,165,000 L (ZE=Z—F : &
Bl #9 /5,776,000 7% 7T - 9,587,000 % T -
11,513,000 7T £2.13,883,000/5 7T ) °

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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(a)

(b)

Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5 — W& R/ #B&E B 2)
Information about major customers FERERFZER
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for HEe-_Z2-_—_Fk=-ZE=-—F=A
the years ended 31st March 2022 and 2021. ST —HLEMEFE  BERF (K=
KBEB10%IA |k o
Contract liabilities (a HRAE
The Group has recognized the following liabilities related to REEEHRTIHEFEHNARZE
contracts with customers: f& :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Contract liabilities related to sales of BHEE F ool
electronic components, electrical BRITF RS
components and equipment BHEzEHNERE 99
Contract liabilities related to sales of HIHETKER
computer products, mobile accessories FHEB 1 M AR UA
and service income BREZANEE 846
Contract liabilities related to sales of HEE b mmERZ
cosmetic products AHEE 349
1,294
Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers ERBEEREHARZINTEP2EMTE
for goods that have not yet been delivered to the customers. As at WEPZHRE RITE__FR_E
31st March 2022 and 2021, the contract liabilities mainly included Z—F=-ZA=+t—H AHEEIER
the receipts in advance from individual customers for sales of REREERESHREERERHEEEF
electronic components, automation parts and equipment, sales of T BRI RS HEEME
computer products and mobile accessories and sales of cosmetic m R FHEE A R E R TERE
products after the end of respective reporting period. BPZHIE -
Revenue recognized in relation to contract liabilities (b) BB AR R

Revenue of approximately HK$899,000 (2021: approximately
HK$2,135,000) is recognized in relation to contract liabilities in the
year ended 31st March 2022 related to carried forward contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period.

All of the Group's remaining performance obligations for contracts
with customers are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

REE—_E-_—_F=—A=1+—HLEFE
ZENBBECI RN BREBRVIEEZED
BE)ER UL 5899,00008 T (—F
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B 285 e Fi

Other Income and Net Gains

Management fee received from third parties

Commission income
Interest income from bank deposits
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gross rental income from investment properties

Government grants (note)
Other income

BRE=TT2EEE
BEUA
RITEZFBIA

HE R B R Rz

HEME - BE MRz W

REMEES WAL
B 8 B (B 5 )
HWA

NN N E L
2022 2021
s —E - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T TFAT
1,464
704
169
29
192
8,189
651
11,398

Note:  Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government,
wage subsidies of approximately HK$6,329,000 related to the Employment
Support Scheme and subsidies of approximately HK$1,360,000 related
to the one-off Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme were recognized in the year
ended 31st March 2021. Other government subsidies of approximately
HK$10,000 were granted to subsidiaries in Hong Kong during the year

ended 31st March 2021.

Government subsidies of approximately HK$47,000 (2021: approximately
HK$490,000) granted to subsidiaries in other jurisdictions were recognized

in the year ended 31st March 2022.

B -

BIEEBFEBFHELS [BHEERE
& BHEZZZ—-F=FA=+—8B1
FE - [RBEITEERO T AR
#9/46,329,000/8 7T © Mgt — R [ TEE
& BT FER A E B RIKY 41,360,000
TeoHEZTEZ—F=A=1+—HLHF
B RTEBE R R A E A BT RS
#7410,000/8 7T ©

BE-_Z-_—_F#=-A=+—HLFE "
BERETHMRIEEENRE A TMNK
IR #4700 T (ZFZ—F : &)
490,000757T) °

ERAEEERAT - —B-—FFRH
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7

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

A N i A

FRENTINEGHA) THIRIEA

2022
—E-CF
HK$'000
FTExT

Costs of inventories expensed
Employee benefit expense (Note 12)
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on goodwill
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative expenses)
Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (included in general and
administrative expenses)
Provision/(reversal) for impairment of
slow-moving inventories (included in cost of sales)
Expenses related to short-term leases

Auditors’ remuneration

Net foreign exchange gain (included in general and
administrative expenses)

7
FERARAX
EERMAX (ME12)
B EERH
EREAENE
0E - BELREE
AEREEE

FEWE 5 IR URE B

(BRFA—REITBREZER)
FEWE 2R FUR B B R
(BFFA-RETBRERZER)

REFERERE/(BE)

(BEABERA)
B
e 2
B S s F (B A

—RETHRERER)

363,154
60,223
53
1,461
1,868

(144)

2,230
1,824
1,120

(5,669)

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FETT

346,516
57,964
37
9,550
2,044
190

208

(119)
(2,797)
5,701
1,120

(5,976)
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8 Finance Costs

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Interest expense on short-term bank borrowings fSHAtRTTEE ~ F 2
HEBGEZFEMX

il AR

9 Income Tax Expense
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Current income tax BIEAFTIS T

P 45 5 B 52

AR BRI R BB EATREES
2 A R BRI 16.5% (— B = — 4 :
16.5%) 2 BEBEEBFIEH - LRER
Rt RBUE R A A B B £ 75 2 B
R 2 B A EIBSNIRI 2 BUA -

(1,019)

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH
— Overseas taxation —HNETE
— Over-provision in prior years — R FE BRI
Deferred tax expense/(credit) EERIERY,(HE)
— Overseas taxation —INETE
Income tax expense Frsfifx

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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9  Income Tax Expense (continued) 9 RSB X (&)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the REEBRMAEHADEN 2 HIBAERRBE
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits BRESHMBEEFESH 2 ERETEDT
Tax rate as follows: A - &AL
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit before income tax R PS5 A& A 20,539
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1&2& & 1S5 F & 16.5%
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (ZZZ—% : 16.5%)
ATECBIE 3,389
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEIREE 2 HE
operating in other countries NEFRBATRAME 2 28 1421
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized HARFERZ B AT
FIAEE 672
Utilization of previously unrecognized BRI M AERZ
tax losses RIS (16)
Over provision in prior years BEFERERE (1)
Others Hith (3,515)
Income tax expense FriSHif = 1,950
As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda, HARARR AR E REFMA T 2 &R
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035. RAT WEREHMARENERES
—T=REF-
As at 31st March 2022, the Group has unused tax losses RZZE-_ZF=A=+—H A£EZ
of approximately HK$84,939,000 (2021: approximately KRBV IEREIEA) /384,939,000 (=%
HK$90,758,000) available for offset against future profits (subject ——4 1 990,758,000/ C) - BEEREE
to the approval of the relevant tax authorities). No deferred tax B SR AR T (B E AT TSRS
asset had been recognized in respect of such tax losses due to the HEBRFFHEE) - W PR FIAEE
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses have no WRELEHIBEE - REARRETRAR
expiry date. Hom M HR o FRIBBENRIEA -
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10

11

Earnings Per Share 10 HBRAEFM EiE
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended BHE-_T-_—F=A=+—HILFEZ
31st March 2022 is based on the Group's profit attributable to BRERBADNEARAEREB AR
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$13,211,000 1 7N £ B 5% F 4913,211,0008 o5t &
and the calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended mMBEE-_E-—F=A=+—HLFE
31st March 2021 is based on the Group's profit attributable to ZEHREARBNIRARNTERFTEA
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$12,151,000. FE {5 7N 2 B 5% M) £912,151,00008 TTEHE -
The calculation was based on the weighted average number of EHFEDERFAEETETRRKRZ
200,000,000 (2021: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during DN #E S ¥9 £2200,000,000 0% ( —FE — —4F -
the year. 200,000,0008% ) ©
The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per HRARBREEZE-_ZE-_—_FK_-F
share as the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in T—F=ZA=T—HLmMEFEILET
issue during the years ended 31st March 2022 and 2021. MABEHEXLE 2D BITEEKR &
BREERNEGREKRZRFTIER -
Dividends 11 BE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E - —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Interim dividend paid of HK cents 0.5 B ER S E AR EBAR0 5L
(2021: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share (ZZ==——%F : 0581) 1,000
Proposed final dividend of HK cents 0.5 ¥R R HRY B A% 3 % 0.5 781l
(2021: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share (ZZ=—F : 0.5811) 1,000
2,000

At a meeting held on 29th June 2021, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2021.

At a meeting held on 29th June 2022, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2022. This proposed final
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements.

—ﬂi/\ﬁ] +jLE|§—E'/T?ZE|u¥k
REFERRNHE_ZT_—
+— HIEFEz RBREFR

3334}@31
b)l\

ZEZCFERAZTNARRTZEH
A RREEERRNEES -
)5]:+—E|Jt¢r23ﬁﬁﬂﬂ S8R

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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(a)

Mobicon

BV 285 e M

Employee Benefit Expense 12 fRBmARX
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMET 55,518
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIRE KA — FREtREHEl 2,446
Total employee benefit expense B Et&FIF X 4258
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREZFHS) 57,964
Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BIRE— @R EH

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Except for voluntary
contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. The
employer’s and employees’ contribution are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 (2021: HK$30,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

REECAEBRARELHS HEHIME
AESHE([BESE]) - 8BS
AEITHBYEEAT R EEENG
2o IREmESHE  AEEREES
BASEREBBA(EERERBFIEAES
FTEHER) 2 5% AMZTEER - R B
FEAEFRASN - s FE S5t 8 I & T A 1E
AR REFREAERT LU - B
FRESHKRZEAKA LR A30,000%
(=T ——% :30,000/87T) °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. (A< £ &
HEBYLEZZHNBAR)EAESRA
TRELTHSEEERNESE(QE
®EtE]) c AEEFEIHSERATRK
[TER 2 EREERETE - BEBEAESE
2 EEXREEENIREERA(ESR
B—NMN—FRERQELES) Z13% &
1% A R FZaT SR o BREEFBASN - K
FEVTERERINRKSIEKRE
BB LE—SEMT - BEBRTKEZE
BEMBRNEEZTRKE -



Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employee’s monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group’s contributions are expensed as incurred.

The Group has arranged for its South African employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes. The Schemes is a defined
contribution plan managed by an independent trustee. Under the
schemes, each of the group and its employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes ranging between 5% to 7.5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance.

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. (ANEE & &
EWBAREREFINEREERHSHR
FRABEFE([FRRAEREE]) -
FRABESAEBETINMBERNTEE
TEREERGTE - BEBEFPRAESFE -
EEREEADANEZREERA(EERF
RQFERIE) 217% Kk 20%EF A R Zar &4
Koo BRAEFRBASN - ANE B B B R
THRRESFERKERFINE L#E—FH
- EBEBRNEEBEERERNRKEES
TR E -

RBHBOERMROIFATR  AEER
HABEAMmESERNBEREBRIKES
ER R BREHRE AR E L RTE
o M EtE AERMERETE - K
BERAETEAMERERFEZETE
DHEE - REBFHFN > KEEALT
ARERINERSIRARERENE L
E-FEME - BREERAREAEBE
FRINE B XA RIKE -

B ERE S TRIKS 0] A%
EREARIER Y EARKSESER
RORZLLEE G A TE 2 B o A&
S5 8] 2 (G HOEE B S B o

AEBERHEMIFREESERTER
TEEAtE c ZAETTHBUREAETRE
ZEBMPHEE - RIBZTE KFER
HEBHARREERACERRRHIER
TEaaTEER) 25%%7.5%F A mat &4t

o
A °
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 ®HEEFEHFBABZMS

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the HEZZ-__F=-A=1+—RHIEFE
year ended 31st March 2022 is set out below: BEEERTETBRABZHESEINNT -

Executive directors HITES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Aulgdt
(chairman) (£/Z)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEELTL
(deputy chairman and (BIER#THAEH)
chief executive officer)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HERZELE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERTE

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman’t 4
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung RIEFEL
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HIKEEE

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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13

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2021 is set out below:

13

EREEAEBTHRABZME
(%)

BE-F--F=A=+-ALFE"
SEFREBTHABZMEBIIMT :

Executive directors BiTES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure sl
(chairman) (£/5)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Bery! BEELL
(deputy chairman and (BIEEH#ITHAEH)
chief executive officer)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEZERE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLA

Independent non-executive BUYFHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman5t 4 80 - - 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric aKERAE 80 - - 80
280 - - 280
Note: BT

During the year ended 31st March 2022, four directors (2021: four) of the Group
waived emoluments in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$600,000
(2021: approximately HK$600,000). No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any director during the year
(2021: Nil).

RBE-_Z-_—_F#=A=+—BLFE X&
ENEESE(Z2-—F  NE)REMEEH
#9600,000/8 70 (=2 = —4F : £9600,000%8 7T ) ° F
A RSN T EE SR E
VERBEIMMAREER 2 HE S BERmHE( T = —
FofE) o

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(continued)
Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include no (2021: nil) executive director whose
emoluments are set out above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining five (2021: five) highest paid employees who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

13

EREEEBTHABZME
()

i 4 5 A

R AEEREBBHFALEP LS
(CF=—F SRTEE - BB
SHREX - BTEA(ZB=—F: &
Z)EHANAFENEEIETRARLL
SEFEEZFRFHEBENT -

contribution scheme

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind #4& - 2B R EMEYEF]
Employer’s contributions to defined ERH G E 2 BEHRK

The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FMNTUTHEZ BSHFALZHE
BB

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z751,000,00078 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2021: Nil).
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o 1 BV 205 A B

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 3% ~ W% &kl D R &

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (a) L E Y &S ]
Freehold  Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor
land properties fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
KAEELH  BENE GAREE BATRE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AL THBL FHBL TAT AT
Year ended 31st March 2021 BE-BE--%
ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 6,818 17,889 728 1,025 854 21314
Exchange differences EHER 1,440 1,105 4 83 125 2,797
Additions RNE - - 115 755 157 1,027
Surplus on revaluation BHRBH - 45 - - - 45
Disposals HE - - - (8] (24) (32)
Depreciation e - (575) (270) 985) (234) (2,044)
Closing net ook amount FRERFE 8,258 18,464 617 890 878 29,107
At 31st March 2021 R-BE--F=A=1+-H
Cost or valuation RAEREE 8,258 19.271 20,33 18,193 3,250 69,307
Accumulated depreciation Z:FE - (807) (19.718) (17.,303) (2,372) (40,200)
Net book amount EEFE 8,258 18,464 617 890 878 29,107
Year ended 31st March 2022 BZ-E-—F%
ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 8,258 18,464 617 890 878 29,107
Exchange differences EREE 545 (596) 10 11 3) (33)
Additions AE 10,532 - 419 509 739 12,199
Surplus on revaluation BHBH - 169 - - - 169
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKBAR - - - (9) - 9)
Disposals HeE - - (14) (18) 217) (249)
Depreciation e - (509) (257) (709) (393) (1.868)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 19,335 17,528 775 674 1,004 39,316
At 31st March 2022 R-E--f#=A=1+-H
Cost or valuation KAME A E 19,335 18,670 20781 18,521 3675 80,982
Accumulated depreciation L:tirE - (1,142) (20,006) (17,847 (2,671) (41,666)
Net book amount REFE 19,335 17,528 775 674 1,004 39,316

ERNEMERAT - —B-FFH
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14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 ¥ -~ WG AXHEULRHE

(continued) (%)
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) (a) 3k~ WG M (E)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2022 and 2021 TR EER T _FRF—F=
of the above assets is as follows: A=+t—BAZRREREESTHAT
2022 —E-=
Freehold Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
land properties  andfixtures equipment vehicles Total

KARELH  EENR  BARKE  MOERK e it
HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSO0D

T TEL TEL TEL TER TR

At cost AE 19,335 13928 20,781 18,521 16,240
At valuation ftE - 4102 - - 418
19,33 18670 20,781 18521 80,982
2021 —T-—F
Freghold Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
[and properties  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total

Wghts EENZ GEREE BOTRE  pE e
HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
T AT TR TAn TA TAR

At cost G 8,258 14591 20,33 18193 3250 64,627
At valuation i@ - 4680 - - - 4680
8258 19,21 2033 18193 3250 69,307

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held HEMEMRBEBRIIIZRABEER
under a long-term lease. F
At 31st March 2022, had the leasehold properties of the Group RZE-Z—F=A=+—0 HMAEEH
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the ZHEWMETIRE LKA BT ES
carrying values would have been approximately HK$2,346,000 iR - RIBRMEE B4 452,346,000 T (=F
(2021: approximately HK$2,467,000). Z—1F 1 #92,467,00077T) ©
At 31st March 2022, leasehold properties with net book amount of RZE__F=A=+—8  GKHF
approximately HK$4,742,000 (2021: approximately HK$4,680,000) BEXRLTN00BT(ZTZ—F : 4
have been pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by 4,680,000% 7T ) 2 HEWMEEWEMRIER
a bank to a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$4,187,000 RITHE T B AR & A A4,187,0008 7T
(2021: approximately HK$4,166,000). (ZZT=——% : #4,166,000/57C) 2 & TR

TTRVE 2 IR -
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o
ARE

14

(a)

(i)

S s R Mk

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2022 and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a
member of Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(i) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

(i)

%ﬂé Wi B B sk Ml DA B BB
W%~ RO R )

AEBHEVWENR_Z_—_FK_F
=A==+ —HZRAFENRESR
REBITEBAEBUAEREEMGE
MRz BETZHEMERE - BAHE
MAFMNEIEMmEGEMHBEEE -
TEBAMHERAEYEEET DEEEE
ERMGIBES - BEGHENLE2ER
HYERR B MIGEREED -

AEBZBRENSIREBEZ FHHE

HELEEABBRAFTESR2BEARE
& o
FAF— FERRE=FzBEI

BEAEMER -

1 EEE
eEEF
AEERIBF-AREHEEMESK
BUEE RAFE  AREGEHRBL
HEEGHEMTET - REEHREHELE

HR EFgEMRFHERHEENE
RFEZFHE  EREFARENZIBL

HE EFEMBLEEMIEL M
B AEEHMBRR - EFEEER
RLBF-REAANEEFHRAYTH
BERRFRER

REEHRFER EFF :

(i) REBYMERSTHOMBELIE
AR

(ii) FBEBEFE 2 HERSEL
B ABEEMEZGESR
K&

(i) BE(AEMET® o

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR
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14

(a)

(ii)

(b)

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 % * o~ M Rk A R LB
(continued) (%)
Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) (a) W WE R (&)
Valuation basis (continued) 1EEEEE)
Valuation techniques (i) CACET
The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for RZBE-——FR=-F-_—F=A=+—
own use as at 31st March 2022 and 2021 are classified as Level 2 H AEEFEERcEEMEZRAF
valuations. BESBEAE _RMEE-
The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined BERMEEWE A TENNFERATS LR
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales EEE  HE2ZAHARIMBZMS
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square BERPAHEEMERET T RERE
feet basis using market data which is publicly available. BHEZAHEERES -
The Group leases machinery under non-cancellable lease ZISEEE}J““TT%K%?E S HhEEE
agreements and the lease term is 5 years.  THEAREABEF -
Leases by ME
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a AW FREAEEEAABAZHAEZ
lessee. BEK} o
Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of (i) RGEHBMERERZEEE
financial position
As at As at
31st March 31st March
2022 2021
i S
—E-CF —E-—F
=A=t—H =H=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Right-of-use assets {EFQEEE
Retail stores, office premises and EEH PAEMER
warehouses ié’jﬁ‘ 6,937
Lease Liabilities HEAE
Current BIEA 4,188
Non-current JEBNER 3,125
7,313

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31st March 2022 were approximately HK$9,168,000 (2021:
approximately HK$4,263,000).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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14

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

s to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 285 e Fi

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 W% -~ W)RE Ll R E
(continued) (#)
Leases (continued) by HMEE)
Amount recognized in the consolidated statement of profit (i) RESBEHEAER 24
or loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the following FEBRRHEIITINEEERH s &8
amounts relating to leases:
2022 2021
—E-—fF —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENERX
Retail stores, office premises and TEER  HRAEVER
warehouse V) 9,536
Office equipment YN 14
9,550
Interest expense (included in finance costs) MBI (B ARERKA) 547
Expenses relating to short-term leases HGHIHE R 2 AX
(included in general and administrative (BEFA—f &
expenses) THERER) 5,701
Expenses relating to variable lease payments EARit ATREA BN EHEE
not included in lease liabilities (included in HZBBOFESZ(BA
general and administrative expenses) — R ERITHEEER) (186)
Note: Fff3E

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March 2022 was
approximately HK$15,824,000 (2021: approximately HK$15,566,000).

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted
for

The Group leases retail stores, office premises, warehouses and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
1 to 5 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iii)

RBE-_Z-_—_F=-A=+—HLFE HEZ
BEeMHBELNA158240008 (=T =—4F :
#915,566,00078 7T)

FEEHEZBREABEEZARE
&

AEEHERETEER WHOED
¥ BERkEE - BHO-REESEF
E5H5F o

HEGRDRBEMNEOHEHER B
BEERTRAMGREGES - BT HA
ABB HEEBET 2 ERERS - M
EmELEEMETMRE - HEEET
A REIE SRS o

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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14

(b)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

15

B 285 e A Fh

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Variable lease payments

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are
linked to an index or a rate.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximize
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group's operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

Residual value guarantees

The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to
leases during the year ended 31st March 2022 (2021: Nil).

Investment Properties

14

(b)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

15

W ~ Wil B st DL LB
()

HlsE ()

TRERNH

ARE 2 HEL TS RIEHRT R
3 £ R . =

LR AR IR
AEEZENERERDSTR RIKIEE
B BREEASEEBEEMFRZ
BEMES  ZSEERDANRZSERS
BIEZEEMN - FIBENKIEHITER R
IR ERETAASEMIESE LA
AITEE -

FIAEEER
REBEE-ZE-_—F=A=+—8BLHF
B AEEVERHEBEASEOFGRE
BER(ZZZ—F: &)

"REME

2022 2021

—E-CF —E—4F
HK$'000
TET

HK$"000
TR

Non-current asset — at fair value
Opening balance at 1st April

FRBDEE-EAVE
RO A—RZF&eH

Exchange differences M R
Fair value gain/(loss) AEEWRE (EE)

4,518
276
(171)

Closing balance at 31st March

R=ZA=t1t—HZFRE

#R 4,623

Gross rental income from
investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income

REMFEHESWALRE

o EEHSWAZIRE
MEZBEREERX

192

(31)

161
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(a)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March
2022 and 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a
member of Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties.

At 31st March 2022, investment properties with aggregate
amount of approximately HK$4,685,000 (2021: approximately
HK$4,623,000) have been pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$4,187,000 (2021: approximately HK$4,166,000).

The fair value change is included in “general and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each investment property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group's annual report date.

As at 31st March 2022 and 2021, the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(ii) Assess investment properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(i) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

(a)

AEBREMER_Z-__FR_F
T FZAZt+—HZAFENRER
AEEVEBECBEVAEREEME
MRZBETZEEMET - BYEE
fAaFmEIEMmEEEm eS8
EEEMHEREYEGFEFBEEBRE
BRMOEBLES AHEABENEL2ZR
BYERR B MISEREED

RZZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H " BN
754,685,000/ 70 (== —— 1 : 494,623,000
BT ZREMECHEEMR - ERBRITR
THIB AR EEL A4,187,0008 T(—F
Z— ¢ 494,166,000 0 ) 2 & FERIT R
EZ2EMAR -

AFERHIINGA BAE [—BRIR
EEEMIET -

1 EEF
AEERILBFE-RAREREDESK
BiUfhE RAFE  ARMGEERBEL
BEXMBEMTET REBERSHEE
HR EFgTNRSHRRRENE
REEZFE  EREFERENZ2BEL
HE- -EFEMNBULGAEMMEL 2@
B ABELMEHRR - EFE(EERD
RLBF-REAAEEFHAYTH
H{ERF A

FRZIFZ-FZA=1—

) EHEBUGERSTOHMEER
BAB

i) EBRBEFEZEERSEL
B RERENRZEER
&

(jii) B ERNEI TR o

BERAEEERLR - —B--FFR
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15 Investment Properties (continued) 15
Valuation basis (continued)
(b)  Valuation techniques (b)

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group held to
earn rentals as at 31st March 2022 and 2021 are classified as Level
2 valuations.

The fair value of investment properties is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price and rental
of comparable properties on a price per square feet basis using
market data which is publicly available.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book
values are analyzed as follows:

BREWE #)

{2 (2 )

1 EE
RZEZZFRZFE_—F=A=+—
B AEEBFERRAS2REDEY
ANFEENEAE_RIEE -

BREMEZ AFENER TS L BOAE
EERSEAHRARBMA TS ER
hAM LR iR E T T REBEEL
BnHEENrES -

AEE 2 REYE S RREFEEH
ZAMIT

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET TFHT

Leases of between 10 and 50 years: HEN F10FZE505F ¢
— Properties held outside Hong Kong —HEBBRINEEZME

4,623

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 /N
e

15

(c)

(d)

B 285 e Fi

Investment Properties (continued)

Valuation basis (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables present the investment properties of the
Group carried at fair value by valuation method as at 31st March
2022 and 2021:

15

(c)

Quoted prices

in active
market for
identified
assets
Level 1
EHAEE
RERHE
ZHE
E—R
HK$'000
FHET
2022 —E-CF
Recurring fair value measurements & & oA T (EHE
— Properties held outside —EBRBBIMNFEZ
Hong Kong mE
2021 —E--F
Recurring fair value measurements %1 A T EE
— Properties held outside —HEEBERIMNIEZ
Hong Kong S -

REWE #)

fhfE s (E)

RFEZR
TREIRZZBZZFRZZF-_—F=
A=+—BkEETEE S 2 AEEHIZ
NEESNERZIREDE

Significant
other  Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs
Level 2 Level 3 Total
HitEX BX
ERER THBR
ABE WAHE
B E={ met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET THET

4,623 - 4,623

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Leasing arrangement

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases run for a period
of 2 years. None of the leases include variable lease payment.
For minimum lease payment receivables on leases of investment
properties are disclosed in Note 27.

(d)

e P et CIECT - PE T
BHAYERRAATESR I HARS
H oo

FRN - F—H BBRE=ZFKEL
BRI -

HEZH
AEBRBLEREREREME - H
EABAXN - EREEREWE - A
WEAEHENK - REMEHEZE
WRER ERIBFH BN 27K EE -

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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16 Goodwill and other intangible assets 16 B2 B H i S8 &
Goodwill Licenses Total
mE FFAIRE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THETT

Year ended 31st March 2021 B2
=A=+t—HLEE

Opening net book amount FEYERERE 171 63 234
Exchange differences M R 19 14 33
Additions RE - 52 52
Impairment loss recognized in the year ER#ER 2 FIEE B (190) - (190)
Amortization charge RS - (37) (37)
Closing net book amount FRREFE - 92 92
At 31st March 2021 R-ZE-_—F=A=+-—H
Cost RAME 207 171 378
Accumulated amortization and REHE S MORE

impairment (207) (79) (286)
Net book amount BREFE
Year ended 31st March 2022 BE-—2—-—F

=SA=+t—-HLEE

Opening net book amount FEmFEE
Exchange differences M R
Additions RE
Amortization charge BiERY
Closing net book amount FLEREFE
At 31st March 2022 R-sE-_—%#=HA=+—H
Cost X ANME 212 273
Accumulated amortization and Rt EE MORE

impairment (212) (135)
Net book amount BRTFE 138
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B 285 e M

Goodwill and other intangible assets
(continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGU in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment by Swan
Electrical (Pty) Limited (“Swan").

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating unit ("CGU")
identified according to country of operation and operating segment
as follows:

7 5 e LAt S TP & E ()

BTETREIR BECESER
Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited([Swan]) B & &
DHEFLM BRIUMERESRETZ
W IRGELEEEA -

BEONEEASEREEBRRLEED
BmAEE 2 REELEMN - FHBEWT

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F& T FET

Electronic Trading Business — South Africa BEFEEXB M

N

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on a business forecast approved by management
covering a b-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.5%. The
CGU's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated at 3%
growth rate. Revenue growth rate are based on the directors’ best
estimate on the average growth rate of the industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the estimate
of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the past performance and
management’s expectation for the market development. During
the year ended 31st March 2021, the recoverable amount of
the CGU was assessed to be less than the carrying amount due
to the challenges and uncertainties resulting from the strategy
adjustment in the future development of this CGU by the Group.
The management determined an impairment loss of approximately
HK$190,000 during the year ended 31st March 2021. No
impairment of the other assets in this CGU is considered necessary
as there is no other material assets subject to impairment in this
CGU.

T ReELEM A RESEERE
FRAEBENEEET  ZrEEFAE
EREBEZE A FHBERSENED
2 B8 = T8 R LA & B AT AL B K 18.5%
ECHE  ReELEMBBAFIHM
CHEEeREANIERRINHEE - Yk
BREEDNREBEESHITEFHEEER
ZEEMFTMET - FREAETEEZ
HERBRISRBERESRA R
ZIEET BRREBEHEELRENE B
B DIRERERBREREEHMS
BERBHMEL REEZZT=—F
A+ RALFE BRAEEYHZ
REEEBMHRRERIED T RE G
R BRTHRERTIEERE - %8
SEEBEMNIIRE S ERTAERLE
HE -BE-—T-——&=A=+—8IF
FE - BIEERTRMEEIE 190,000
T AREBESELBENRHERLME
REEETRE MRAELBERZRS
EAENPHEMEEREITRHE o

ERNEMERAT - —B-FFH
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Fff J& 2 W]
RBE-—FR-_FT-_—F=ZA=+—
B WBAR(EBAQAEMERFE(E

17 Subsidiaries 17
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2022 and 2021, all of
which are held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI)

148

Limited which is held directly by the Company), are as follows: Mobicon (BVI) LimitedfR 4p - ERAQFEH
BREAE))FBOT
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of issued share Proportion of ownership
Name kind of legal entity operations capital/registered capital interest held by the Group
AMAIBER IERBR BRIRE/ ARG ERR
£ EERRER EEBY EMERFE READL
2022 201
“B-Cf —E-F
A Plus Computer Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USDB00,000 100%
Limited limited liability company RERETRERR ERIR800,000E T
ZERNES  ARAT
APlus 2 Computer Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
RESERERAR limited liability company products and mobile accessories  EARR1,000E T
BE - BRAFE in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FRRHEERDH
APower Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer  Ordinary HK$500,000 60%
BEREREB AT limited liability company products, cosmetic products and ~ ZR500,0007 T
&% BRAA mobile accessories in Hong Kong
REBETERER hmk
FRRHEERDH
AESI (HK) Limited Hong Kong, Provision of information technology ~~ Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
K—Z5(FE) limited liability company senvices in Hong Kong TRER1000ATT
BRAT &8 BRAT REBR{EANRRS
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) ~ Republic of South Africa, Investment holding in South Africa Ordinary South 61%
Limited limited liabilty company REEETREER African Rand ("ZAR") 100
BIEANE  ARAR LRRI0EEES
Mantech Electronics Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 61%
(Proprietary) Limited limited liability company components, electrical components @107 FE 5

B - BRATF

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEAE )
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of issued share Proportion of ownership
Name kind of legal entity operations capital/registered capital interest held by the Group
ERMAIBER IERHR BRARA/ rEEFERAR
2% EERRES BELY EREARE ERAAM
2022 202
—B__F -ZI--F
MBM Properties (Proprietary)  Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 61%
Limited limited liability company components, electrical components  E@AR100% 5
BELTE BRAF and equipment in South Africa
RBFENEF M BERH
RESEERDH
MCU Power Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100%
REHERAF limited liability company components, electrical components  Z3&R%1,000,00035 7T
% BRAA and equipment in Hong Kong
REBETEF L  BRALY
RESEEEN &
Milliard Devices Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 70%
FERTHBRAR limited liability company components, electrical components & #fR1,000,00078 7T
% BRAA and equipment in Hong Kong
REBETEF L  BRALY
REREERDH
Mobicon (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD10,000 100%
limited liailty company ~ REBE(TREZR LERI000ET
AERNES ARAT
Mabicon (Taiwan) Limited Republic of China, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary New Taiwan dollar 100%
BEERNRLERA limited liability company components, electrical components 5,000,000
hERE ARAA and equipment in Taiwan L5000 00057 5%
REEETEFRN  BRRH
RESEEED
Mobicon Agent Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$10,000 100%
ERIREBRAR limited liability company components, electrical components & &%10, 0007 T

B ARAH

and equipment in Hong Kong
REBETE TN ERLA
RESEEEDH

ERAEEERAT - —B-—FFRH

149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 A M

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

ERLHREREEENE

17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 MBAFE )
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of issued share
Name kind of legal entity operations capitalfregistered capital
ARAIBER IERBR BRARA/
£ EERRER EELY ERERGE
Mobicon Electronic Trading PRC, wholly-owned Trading and distribution of electronic  Registered capital
(Shenzhen) Limited foreign enterprise components, electrical components HK$2,000,000
(Note i hE - IEEECE and equipment in the PRC FH A 7R2,000,000%
ERRETES(RI) RPEETEf Ll BRLY
RRAT (HE) REREEEDH
Mobicon Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$10
ERNZTEEERAT  limited liability company components, electrical components AR 107 7T
% BERAA and equipment in Hong Kong
REBETEF L  BRALY
REBEEENH
Mobicon International Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD100
limited liabilty company REBETREER LERI0ET
XBRAHE  ARAT
Mobicon Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1
limited liability company REREITRERR LERIET
ZERNER  ARAT
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD1,000
Limited limited liability company RERETRERR LHR 0005
ZBRUHS  ARAT
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Singaporean
Pte Ltd. limited liability company components, electrical components — dollar 300,000
TIRANE - BRA] and equipment in Singapore 8300, 0005 IR T
RETIRETE Tl
BRTHRESEEENH
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Malaysia, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary Malaysian
Sdn. Bhd. limited liability company components, electrical components — Ringgit 1,000,000
ERAD  BRAE and equipment in Malaysia 3301 000,000
RERESETEFTS SREEHER

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Group
AREREERR
BRAMM
2022 201
ZBCZE Z3C-F
100%
100%
100%
100%
61%
100%
95%
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17 Subsidiaries (continued) 17 BB
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of issued share Proportion of ownership
Name kind of legal entity operations capital/registered capital interest held by the Group
ERMAIBER IERBR BRIRE/ rEEFERAR
£ EERRER EENY AMERFE BREAM
2022 202
“-CfF C3o-f
Narciso Gomes - Componentes ~ Portugal, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary EURO 1,221,000 3%
Electronicos Lda limited liability company components, electrical components & f%1,221 000812
B87  ARAA and equipment in Portugal
REBTENE TN
BRATHRESZEEANH
Partners 2 Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary USD100 100%
limited liabilty company REBETREER LERI0ET
ZERNES  ARAT
Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited ~ Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 40%
limited liability company components, electrical components  E AR 100EI 3 EH S
HFLENE - BRAR and equipment in South Africa
REEETEF RN BRRH
RESEEENH
Switch Technique KZN Republic of South Africa, limited ~ Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 30%
Proprietary Limited liability company components, electrical components AR 100% JE 3
MIERNE  BRAA and equipment in South Africa
RBEETEFRM  BRRH
RESEEEDH
Videocom Technology Hong Kong, Trading of cosmetic products Ordinary HK$2 100%
(HK) Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong LERAT
ERE(ER)ARRR  FF BRAF REBETHREE
Note: P
(i) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December (i) RIBEUWETERTE - ZH B R R 2K

in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2022 and 2021.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2022 (2021: Nil).

FEHEHEAAT-_AR=1+—8 #EE
EI T - AEBGRAMBRETD
REZMNBRARBE-_T-__FR=Z
——EZA=+—BLt+-EAZHE
WERE -

ENBRAARBE_Z-__F=7
=+ —HIEFERNERMRERBEEAD
BIZBEER(ZZE_—F &)

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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17

Mobicon

BV 285 e M

Subsidiaries (continued) 17 WEA %)
Material non-controlling interests HR IR RE 4R
As at 31st March 2022, the total non-controlling interests RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H ' K
is approximately HK$50,890,000 (2021: approximately R 48 FE 49 /50,890,000/8 L ( —E = —F ¢
HK$47,720,000), of which approximately HK$39,273,000 (2021: #747,720,000 7% 7T ) - H H #739,273,000 7%
approximately HK$33,384,000) is for Mobicon-Mantech Holdings TL(=ZZF = —F : #933,384,0008 ) B
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Mobicon-Mantech Group”) in relation % K AN £ 8 B 3F 3 7% 2 Mobicon-Mantech
to the Group's business in South Africa. The non- controlling Holdings Limited X £ Bff & 2 &) ([ Mobicon-
interests in respect of the other subsidiary is not material. Mantech®2 & |) o E b iif 8B 1~ &) 2 3E1ER
EZWTER o
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with BEBEAHFZREGZMWB LB ZHHE
material non-controlling interests BERHE
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the X # 51 I /B 2 F]Mobicon-Mantech & & 2
subsidiary, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling B &R E o Mobicon-MantechSE B B A
interests that is material to the Group. HAEBEMESBENZ TR E -
Summarized statement of financial position BB IEREE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current RED
Assets BE 106,496 99,195
Liahilities aE (44,383) (40,154)
Total current net assets BB EFELT 62,113 59,041

Group Limited - Annual Report 2022
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17

Subsidiaries (continued) 17
Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarized statement of financial position (continued)

Non-current FRE
Assets BE

Pt & 2> W )
(w3034 £-1¢ )
ABEEAHIZRERHE L a2 05%
EREE(F)

BB REEE (&)

34,917
(4,097)

23,146
(2,982)

30,820

Liabilities =N
Total non-current net assets IERBE EFEET
Net assets BEEFE

92,933

Summarized statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

PERZEFREE

143,131 109,362

21,437
(6,118)

15,319
2,439

17,758

Profit before income tax R PSR AT A

Income tax expense FR1S %5 2

Profit for the year F R )

Other comprehensive income Efbh2mUA

Total comprehensive income for the year FAREEBALLE

Total comprehensive income allocated to DT IR E R 2
non-controlling interests ZERA LT

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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17

Subsidiaries (continued)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with

17 W& 2w )

HORIEFEBORE 5 (47)
AEEAFZREZZHE R B ZHH

material non-controlling interests (continued) BEREE(E)
Summarized statement of cash flows HeEnsXkHE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXRELECZERESRE
Cash generated from operations RigsEIEE g IS 15,387 5,164
Overseas income tax paid EAEINSHL (5,708) (4,797)
Net cash generated from operating activities RGP 7 I S E R 9,679 367
Net cash used in investing activities WA ENEA IS FEE (11,278) (285)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REBEBEL (BB
financing activities e 58 789 (2,588)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREEEYRD FE
equivalents (810) (2,5086)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FY S RIELEZEY
the year 2,944 4,693
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREH o 54 757
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  F4&XZIRE& NKIIBEEED 2,188 2,944

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

On 30th July 2021, the Group acquired an additional 20%
of equity interests in APower Holdings Limited for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$1,731,000. The carrying
amount of non-controlling interests in APower Holdings Limited
on the date of acquisition was approximately HK$1,780,000.
The Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$1,780,000 and an increase in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$49,000.

On 11th March 2022, the Group acquired an additional 25% of
equity interests in Swan Electric (Pty) Ltd for a cash consideration
of approximately approximately Rand 7,720,450 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,010,000). The carrying amount of non-
controlling interests in Swan Electric (Pty) Ltd on the date of
acquisition was approximately Rand 5,074,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,636,000). The Group recognized a decrease
in non-controlling interests of approximately Rand 5,074,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,636,000) and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
Rand 2,645,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,374,000).

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

FRAERBIEREEARRRREHATZ

BRI 2R 5

R-ZE-Z—F+A=+0H  KEHFEH
WHE SR BIREE A BR A R)20% A& - ]
SREAA1,731,00008 7T - RUE B -
FTisH 2 % AR £ B A R A 5 JE 12 ik i
25 7 BRE{E 491,780,000 7T AN B
SR IE YR AR R (B 491,780,000 T+ I HE
RN Bl A A JE (T 2 1 (E 4949,000785

JG °©

R-ZZE-_—_F=ZA+—H  AEEZFEN
U B% Swan Electric (Pty) Ltd 25% %1 - 384
RAB49/57,720,45088 75 (FEE5 52 494,010,000
BL) c RUREBRE - B A Z Swan
Electric (Pty) Lid JE¥E i i 2 BREIE L) A&
5,074,000 45 (18 & 72 42,636,000/ 7T ) ©
NS B RE R IETE AR E 55 BB 475,074,000
5 (FE R 492,636,000/ 7T ) @ WHER
NEVER AFE(L R E 492,645,0006
(HBZ 491,374,000 7T ) °
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18

19

Inventories

Electronic components, electrical components

and equipment fEas
Computer products and mobile accessories B E o R TR
Cosmetic products bt

BTl - WRTHR

&

164,069 159,776
14,397 14,740
10,411 12,074

188,877 186,590

Trade Receivables

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses,
presented based on due dates:

0 to 60 days TE60H
61 to 120 days 6121204
121 to 180 days 12121804
181 to 365 days 1812365H

JE Wi BT 5 Mk
rEE-RETHEEF2ERVEEHAT
HZEOETE - REHAZI 2 EBKES
ER(EHBREEBERE) RE TN
T~

50,919 55,801
6,612
154
142

57,827

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of its trade receivables.

RBEARMARZRSEERRRE
WE SRR AFE - ARAEEER
BARZ  HEREIERFLEEES
hEkR o ANEE I EHEKE 5 ERK
FrAEAERRIERER o

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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19 Trade Receivables (continued) 19 JEWHESER 2
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure REEEATENBRELEREIT T
lifetime ECL allowance for all trade receivables. L RIE T ERAEBEMERKE 5ERR

e HMRREREERRE -

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the ERARKESEFRBEMANEBEBY N
Group's exposure to credit risk can be found in Note 3.1(b). EERREER SR °
20 Cash and Bank Balances 20 BEREITH R
2022 2021
—E-CF —E—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Cash at bank and in hand HRITRFHERS 33,525
Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount of REB 2 IR e KIRITAE R B3E476,179,000
approximately HK$6,179,000 (2021: approximately HK$2,454,000) BIL(ZEZ—5F « 492,454,000 7T) A A
was denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The REAENMTFHRAFRBE A Z RE - &
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign BABMZEAARBECEHRBINEG
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland RiPZEESELFREANM - BIZEZH
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange B K 78 4 9 B B DA AR K2 AR Bl PR AR
control promulgated by the PRC government. R -
21 Trade Payables 21 A E B R
The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on the REBEAHENNZENEZERER S
invoice date is as follows: W
2022 2021
ot S - —E &
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
0 to 60 days T E60H 28,533 33,650
61 to 120 days 61£2120H 2,609 3,551
121 to 180 days 1212180H 309 2,550
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 1,880 1,234

33,331 40,985
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22

23

Loan From a Shareholder 22
The amount is unsecured, interest free and was repayable on
demand.

Short-Term Bank Borrowings 23

Short-term bank loans HMERITER
Bank overdrafts RITEX

K H— AR B
BRFESEEN 2B RBRERE
)75% o

7B SRAT A B

66,234
3,058

69,292

All short-term bank borrowings are due within one year and
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar I
US dollar ETT
Euro B 7E
Singapore dollar F N T
South African Rand EES kS

ERBRTEEOR —FREH - 1
ATINEEEHE

59,611

4,429
2,194

3,058

69,292

The effective interest rates of the short-term bank borrowings at
the reporting date range from approximately 2.24% to 7.0% (2021:
2.13% t0 7.0%).

The Group’s certain banking facilities are secured by the leasehold
properties (Note 14) and investment properties (Note 15) of the
Group.

REBE B SHRITEEZEERERX
NTF49228%E70%(=ZF=—4F : 2.13%
Z7.0%) °

AEEETRTREDUNASEZHEE

W (MEE14) RIRE MR (HEE16) FE
ﬁ o

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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24 Deferred Tax Liabilities 24 RIEBLIE A
Analysis of deferred tax liabilities as follows: RIERIABESTNT -

Deferred tax liabilities EERIESE
Deferred tax liabilities are expected to be recoverable and settled TEHRER BB BN —F R IWE R4
after one year. =
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year were as BRERBEBEERFRNZEBHAT -
follows:

As at 1st April 2020 R-ZZE-ZFWMA—H 2,119 160 2,279
Exchange differences JE =58 352 34 386
Credited to consolidated HAGAEHRE

statement of profit or loss (1,019) - (1,019)

As at 31st March 2021 and HR=-"ZE=—-5=HF=+—H

1st April 2021 kR=-Z2--F0A—H
Exchange differences T =R
Credited to consolidated SFTAGRAEEX

statement of profit or loss

As at 31st March 2022 R-—-B-_—_F=A=+—H

25 Share Capital 25 AR

Authorized: VETE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each  2,000,000,0000% & & FEl (&

01078 7T 2 & im AR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAE -
200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each  200,000,000/% & B EI &

010/ 7T 2 E ik
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26

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 26
Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated
from operations:

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
— Amortization of intangible assets
— Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

— Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment

— Impairment losses on goodwill
— Interest income
— Interest expense
— Provision/(reversal) for impairment of
slow-moving inventories

— Provision for impairment of trade

receivables

— Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables
— Fair value (gain)/loss on investment

properties

Changes in working capital:
— Inventories
— Trade receivables
— Other receivables and deposits
— Trade payables
— Other payables and accruals
— Contract liabilities

B PRSI AT A

%

UTFHA 2 8% -
— R
~0% - BERRETE

—EREEERE
—hE—RfNERRF

A as

—HEME - BEREE

Z Wz

—AERERBE
—FIBHA
—FERHX
—BHFERERRE

(%)

— BN E ZRFRERE

—EWE S RFBERE

M

—REMERTFE

(Mezk)/ E518

BEREEE
-8
—EWE SRR
—EM YRR R E e
—ENE SRR
—HitRNRE N EER
BHAE

Net cash generated from operations

REEBELE 2REFR

2022
—E__F
HK$°000
FET

53

1,868
1,467

(12)
(24)

(254)
2,642

2,230
256
(144)

(58)

(3,063)
(293)
(2,821)
(2.11)
5131
2,010

34,113

ERAEEERAT - —B-—FFRH

i B B < v o R i R

BRASHAENEREXRBELZRS
R B

2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FET

20,539

37

2,044
9,550

(29)
190
(169)
2,700

(2,797)
208
(119)
171
(7,017)
(1,484)
1,092
7,017

(1,324)
(2,041)

28,568
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 26 #EAHEWREBEME 2
Cash Flows (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing T ) Ak 2 B R

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TREIAEEREEHELEC AR
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. SHE EERELIIRSEH - @
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which BEYELEZBERGNIENAELE
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the GERERNERAPERBERD 21
Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from EREZBIE -

financing activities.

Loan from Lease Short-term
a shareholder liabilities bank loans Total
RBE—F S
BREZER HESE RITER @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT AT TR THT

As at 1st April 2021 RNZZE-—FEMA—H 25,000 1,313 66,124 98,437
Additions of lease liabilities ~ FAE& &N - 9,168 - 9,168
Financing cash flow BEASRE 5,000 (8,000) (1,609) (4,609)
Interest expense MERL 702 1,940 2,642
Exchange differences [ERERE 109 (221) (112)
As at 31st March 2022 N-ZE-_—_E=A=+—8 9,292 66,234 105,526
As at 1st April 2020 R-ZE-_ZFMA—H 32,000 12,005 67,586 111,591
Additions of lease liabilities ~ FAE& &N - 4,263 - 4,263
Financing cash flow BEReRE (7,000) (10,051) (4,218) (21,269
Interest expense MEFX - 547 2,153 2,700
Exchange differences [& 5 58 - 549 603 1,152
As at 31st March 2021 R-B-—&=B=+—H 25,000 7,313 66,124 98,437

160 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B T 5 A M

27

Operating Leasing Arrangements 27 REMEZRHE

The Group as lessor A SR B 2 AL

As at 31st March 2022 and 2021, the Group have future minimum KRB - _FR_T-_—F=A=+—

lease receivables under non-cancellable leases with third parties. B REANEERE=FFIZ 2T
WHE  AEEATRBAREDRRERE
FEURIE -

Minimum operating lease payments
receivable:

No later than one year —FN

Later than one year and no later than five years —&F#4EBAERN

REMERIERYGRIA

Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by the REHERVREERNEERHEKEY
Group for its investment properties. Lease periods are two years. ¥EW e - HEREAMSF -

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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28 Related Party Transactions 28 PBABALRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the R LE S5 B S SRk HoAth 38 9 PR R & 4
Group had the following significant related party transactions REEBRFANGHEITATEKRBE AL
during the year: 5
(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a) AEEEBEBHALTETCEARSFE
related parties are summarized below: B
2022 2021
—E-CF —E - —F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ks FHET
Rental expenses to M-Bar Limited ¥ M-Bar Limited 2 f &
53 (i), (v) 2,784
Sales to PC Supply Limited and its AEERARAR
subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) LEKBAR([EELH
£EH ) HE (i) 223
Purchases from PC Supply Group WEEREBHE (i) 1,088
Commission income received from BEEEREFERR
PC Supply Group RAelA 8
Commission expense paid to EXNEEREE  Ae
PC Supply Group 53 -
Management fee paid to EXNEERER  ER
PC Supply Group b= 81
Notes: Mz -
(i) M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic (i) M-Bar Limited /& Mobicon Electronic Supplies

Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

(ii) PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwoak Leung,
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

(iii) Commission income/expense received from PC Supply Group was
conducted in the normal course of business at terms as agreed between
the contracting parties.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022

Company Limited 2 2 EM B AR * &2
RAIAANRERSHFERFERNEF -
(30%) ~ 1 BB £(30%) « HEZLA
(20%) 2 45 B BR 5 4 (20%) Bz B - 22
M-Bar Limited 5] 32 2 A & 155 THIRET 40 &
T E ZAGFKETAL »

(ii) BEMBRARDHBHEABKERR
RENEBEBME ) RBRELLHES
99.99% %% 0.01% %5 - BB BMIEHAR
RIEEFFERB A ZEEL(30%) - 5
BUE LT (30%) » RIS ST A (20%) 15 B
BREEQNERES - RETREEESE
TZHERREXSHR —REKBRE
FRIRET S 5 2 R FETT o

(iii) BEEEWERAKRDZASUAFXT
R—REBBRPRITNE T HE G
FUER o
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28 Related Party Transactions (continued) 28 PBABEN LR G @)
Notes: (continued) BEE - (48)
(iv) Management fee paid to PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal (iv) EXNEESPHERACEREIN —KE
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties. BIBRRIRFTHNE A BT 2GR4T o
(v) The lease agreements entered into between M-Bar Limited and Mobicon (v) M-Bar Limited 2 B R M E AR A FF] L
Holdings Limited constitute exempted continuing connected transactions ZHERZEEX ETHRAUBUAZRATE
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. ZERRRHEBERS
(b) Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2022 (b} RZE-_—F=A=+—8 ' K&EEHE
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately fth J& UK IR B 4E B 32 T M-Bar Limited 2 10
HK$464,000 (2021: approximately HK$464,000). BRE 400 T (ZT_—F - 4
464,000787T) °
(c) Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were  (c) Z!SE@ﬁﬁﬂJEH RIB N ERTE A BIERE
amounts due to minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of 5% T BT 88 &) A BUIR BR NI 498,099,000
approximately HK$8,099,000 (2021: approximately HK$5,277,000). Bz T:—i © #95,277,00087T) - B
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on AR RAEEN  REREKRERER -
demand.
(d) Key management compensation (d) FEZEEA BRI
2022 2021
—E-_F —E - —F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term employee benefits EEEEET -
Post-employment benefits B R 2R -

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BEHFH 2 E - PHFBIREETER
KMIFE13 ©

BRAEEERLAR - —Z=-—FFRH
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29 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BEARKIWE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E - —F
Capital expenditure BRI HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
— contracted but not provided for (Note) — B R AR B (M 7E) m -
Note: B3
This committed expenditure relates to buildings to be constructed on the land A GER S BN FrER IE L i FEE  EEY
purchased in South Africa. a0 -
30 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 30 B AT
On 31 August 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase RZEBE-Z—FNA=+—8  A&EEHFT
agreement to dispose 70% equity interests in Milliard Devices VEEWE M EBUFE=-HFHEE
Limited to an independent third party at a cash consideration of Bl TT B AT T0%%HE - IS RELD
approximately HK$704,000. The disposal was completed on 31 7704000870 - HEFHEEN —T - —
August 2021. FNA=+—HK -
Details of the net assets disposed and the gain on disposal are as FHRCHELSEFEREEEEKZEN
follow: Sl
Carrying value
AREE
HK$'000
TFHT
Property, plant and equipment e R 9
Inventories s 407
Trade receivables e E B IR 284
Other receivables and deposits Hib Ul RE RiRe 125
Cash and bank balances Be RIBITER 558
Trade payables FERTE SR (267)
Other payables and accruals Hofth g < 30 E I B AT B (65)
Contract liabilities AdaE (46)
Net assets disposed BHEBEFE 1,005
Consideration received BUE R AR 704
Less: Net assets disposed W BHEEEFE 1,005
Non-controlling interests at disposal date A E B Hl 2 SRR (313)
692
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B ARz s 12
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNBRARMSRERATFE
Cash consideration received BURERE 704
Cash and bank balance disposed EHEZRS MRITES (558)
146
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31

(a)

Statement of Financial Position of the 31
Company and Movement of Reserves of the

Company
As at 31st March 2022

Statement of financial position of the Company (a)

A 4y ) 0 IR D R B AR )

2 i 2 80

REFZZHE=H=1+—H

AR A2 BN R

2022
—E__F
HK$'000
FET

100,640

100,640

1,766
153

1,919

102,559

Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIEE
Current assets REBEE

Amount due from a subsidiary JiE Uy — R B B8 A R 3R I
Cash and bank balances Re MIBTTHER

Total assets EEHAE

Current liabilities FBAE

Other payables and accruals

Hoft A R B AT B

22

22

1,897

102,537

102,537

20,000
82,537

Net current assets RBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABER

Net assets EEFHE

Capital and reserves attributable to ERATEREEA
the equity holders of the Company BAERAREE

Share capital [N

Reserves i

Total equity B

102,537

The statement of financial position of the Company were approved
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th June

2022 and signed on its behalf by:

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE

el
Chairman

E

AARZHBERRARENR =T =__F X
AZ+NWBEZEESHERTETE -

HK$'000
TAT

100,640

100,640

3.418
154

3,572

104,212

22

22

3,550

104,190

104,190

20,000
84,190

104,190

VHTINEEKEREFEEE -

YEUNG MAN Y1, BERYL
BEE

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

BT ERITICARE,

ERAEEERAT - —B-—FFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 Statement of Financial Position of the 31 AXA W MR ELAKLA T

Company and Movement of Reserves of the 2 filt i 52 ) )

Company (continued)

As at 31st March 2022 (continued) REFZHE=ZAZT—H@#E)
(b)  Movement of reserves of the Company (b)  AREZFEEE

Balance at 1st April 2020 MN_TE_TF

MA—RZ & 16,706 67,097 2,109 85,912
Profit for the year F R A - - 278 278
Dividends [85) - - (2,000) (2,000)

Balance at 31st March 2021 W_E-—F=H1

=Zt—HZ&% 16,706 67,097 387 84,190
Balance at 1st April 2021 R-ZE-—FmMA—

B2 &% 16,706 67,097 387 84,190
Profit for the year FEREFH - - 347 347
Dividends % & - - (2,000) (2,000)

Balance at 31st March 2022 W=—"S=-—%=8

=t—Hz&& 16,706 67,097 (1,266) 82,537

Representing: (&

2022 final dividend —T_FREKS 1,000

Others Hity (2,266)

(1,266)

Note: P 5T
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the BABBRIEARRMBETEBR EAEERE -
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries ST —FMA T N\BET 2 BEA KRG FTEH
acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took BRARZEEFBEZER -

place on 18th April 2001.
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Financial Summary

S B L

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

AEEREREMBFEZEAMEEREESR

BEMEHIILT

e

Revenue g

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRERATERN,

(B18)
Income tax expense FrSBimx
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHEF,(E58)
Attributable to: THIALEM -
Equity holders of the Company #<2 E#Ezs#EH A
Non-controlling interests IEVERR e

501,269

27,436
(6,296)

21,140

13.211
1,929

21,140

456,369 461,245 479,396 546,672
20,539 1,565 1,758 (5,929)
(1,950 (4,814) (4,672) (5,080
18,589 (3,249) (2,914) (11,009)
12,151 (5,729) (7,690) (17,132)
6,438 2,480 4,776 6,123
18,589 (3,249) (2,914) (11,009)

BRAEEARLR - —BE=-—FFH
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Financial Summary

H B MR
Assets and Liabilities & Kk afE
Year ended 31st March
BZE=A=1+—-HLFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—¥-Cf T F ZEFITF ZERNF ZF)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET FHET FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR MEE 39,316 29,107 27,314 30,160 16,917
Right-of-use assets P REEE 8,141 6,937 11,755 - -
Intangible assets A 138 92 63 - -
Investment properties WEMFE 4,685 4,623 4,518 4,805 -
Goodwill Ha - - 171 - -
Other receivables H b pE U 2518 2,016 2,688 3,360 4,032 4,704
Current assets TRENAE 301,029 291,032 259,174 260,075 276,348
Total assets EEHAE 355,925 334,479 306,355 299,072 297,969
Current liabilities hEAE (162,695) (156,833) (158,383) (139,956) (129,776)
Net current assets REEEEE 138,334 134,199 100,791 120,119 146,572
Total assets less current EEAER

liahilities REBAE 193,230 177,646 147,972 159,116 168,193
Non-current liabilities SEmBIAE (5,061) (4,771) (6,488) (28) (43)
Net assets EEFE 188,169 172,875 141,484 159,088 168,150

Capital and reserves AAREERFEA

attributable to the equity BEBRAR &S
holders of the Company
Share capital & A 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves i 117,219 105,155 86,284 104,450 122,107

131,219 125,155 106,284 124,450 142,107
Non-controlling interests IEERER 50,890 47,720 35,200 34,638 26,043

Total equity EREE 188,169 172,875 141,484 159,088 168,150
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